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Chairman’s Statement FfER %

Facing the globally uncertain economic climate, Symphony
Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “Group”) experienced another difficult year 2008
as expected. The revenue of the Group in 2008 was up by 10.9%
to HKD2,050.6 million, in which HKD1,947.4 million and HKD99.0
million were contributed by confract manufacturing and branding
business wholly-owned by the Company respectively. The remaining
balance of HKD4.1 million was contributed by rental and other
income. In addition fo the significant adverse global financial effect,
a material depreciation of the fair values of the Group's properties
and the written-off of goodwill of factories had offset the increase
in revenue during the year. Accordingly, total loss for the year was
HKD229.7 million.

Symphony's contract manufacturing sector has continually over
the past decade yielded positive contribution. Notwithstanding
the fact that our major export markets in the United States and
Europe continue to be hard hit by the global recession and the
difficult operating environment, our manufacturing business
recorded a 9.2% increase in sales in 2008. Rising raw material
cost, the tightening of PRC labour and environmental legislations
and the appreciation of Renminbi all leaded to a fall in the gross
profit margin by 3.8% to 13.6%. To counteract the effect of rising
operational cost in China, we relocated our production facilities to
Vietnam where the weather and the labour supply are relatively
more conducive to shoe manufacturing. Labour and utility costs
are also more competitive in Vietnam. At the end of 2008, we had
9 production lines in Hai Phong and Tinh Hai Duong. The global
economic downturn had wiped out a number of smaller scale PRC
shoe manufacturers and we expect our manufacturing business will
eventually benefit from this industry-wide capacity consolidation.
To mitigate the effect of the fluctuation of raw material cost, the
Company is taking steps to diversify our product variety so that we
can cater for a wider range of customer base.

Our current brand portfolio includes Pony, Speedo, Berghaus,
MANGO, Haggar and AEE Italy.

Pony is a US heritage brand with over 40-year history. While the
retail market of the United States continued to be adversely
affected by the global financial downturn, the US management of
Pony intends to focus on performance-inspired lifestyle products,
developing global licensing opportunities and exploring new design
collaboration opportunities. Ongoing efforts are aimed at cutting
administrative cost and identifying new licensees worldwide to
generate additional royalty income. In order to weather the global
financial crisis and to ensure business efficacy, Pony China has also
undertaken reorganization and cost reduction schemes.
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Chairman’s Statement = fER %

The sales of Speedo rocketed in 2008. The points of sale have
expanded fo 97 in mainland China and Taiwan with gross revenue
up fo RMB20.1 million. Apart from highly innovative swimwear
Michael Phelps wore to win 8 gold medals at the Beijing Olympic,
Speedo is adding other sports and leisure garments to its product
line. We expect continued growth in sales this year and the number
of directly managed and franchised stores will increase to 120 in
2009.

Berghaus is a top mountaineering and outdoor gears brand.
Symphony was appointed the sole distributor and licensee for
Berghaus in China for 18 years. We are launching Berghaus in
mainland China this summer. Ten directly managed stores are
planned initially fo kick start in 2009.

Symphony became one of the franchisees of MANGO in China
in 2008. MANGO is an internationally renowned women'’s fashion
originated in Spain. It is a brand widely recognized and is welcome
in the PRC. As an initial step, the Group has set up its MANGO stores

in Beiing and Shanghai at the end of 2008 and early 2009. Further
shops are planned to open in strategic locations in China in this year.

Haggar, a respected brand of men’s apparel in the United States,
in which Symphony has invested as a minority shareholder. In
2008, various reorganization and cost-cutting measures have
been adopted in Haggar. Aggressive cuts in SG&A had been
implemented and non-profitable business units had been closed
down. Efforts have been made to focus on core competence and
streamline operations. It is in the process of turning around and is
expected to generate positive EBITDA and improve profitability
in 2009. Symphony’s share of loss in Haggar in 2008 amounted to
HKD39.8 million. The arbitration claim for the termination of license by
a former Canadian licensee had been settled during the year.

Symphony shared a minority interest in AEE Italy, a top ladies
fashion footwear in China. It is poised fo take strides in providing
fashion minded female consumers with the latest fashion shoes
and accessories at an affordable price. Notwithstanding the global
financial turmoil, the gross profit margin of AEE Italy has slightly
dropped during the year.

In early 2009, Symphony has partnered Toyota Tsusho Corporation,
a member of the Toyota Motor Group, for the distribution and
retailing of certain affordable luxury apparel and accessories brands
originating from Japan, Europe and the United States. It is expected
to open the first flagship store in Hong Kong this summer. China
market and internet stores are also in the pipeline.
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Chairman’s Statement FfER %

In the midst of the worldwide financial crisis in 2008, we have slowed
down the acquisition of land in China for the development of mega
shopping malls and entertainment complexes to complement our
brand retailing business. Symphony's proven frack record in brand
building and continued experience in retail portfolio development
provided a solid foundation for us to enter into the outlet mall
industry in the PRC. We continue to closely monitor the progress of
event before a final decision is made.

Meanwhile, Symphony is acutely aware of the continuing slowdown
of the global economy and has taken appropriate measures to
remain focused on our core manufacturing business to weather
the raging trials facing the world, while devoting efforts and
resources to turnaround the businesses. Symphony endeavours to
reduce the operating cost and improve cost effectiveness of our
branding business model. Based on our solid cash flow foundation
and with our net cash position, the Company is financially sound to
favour from any investment opportunities made available during
this economic condition to provide synergistic value to its current
operation. We remain cautiously opfimistic that Symphony will
ultimately benefit from new growth opportunities when the global
economic recession has boftomed out.

Chan Ting Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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Operation Review ¥&RIH

2008 is a challenging year globally. In the face of the
unprecedented difficult business conditions, the Company has
suffered a loss of HKD229.7 million, which was attributable to the
following factors:

(1) the decrease in fair value of properties as a result of the
revaluation and the loss in the fair value of the securities
investment accounted for HKD44.0 million;

(2) the written-off of goodwill of 2 PRC plants located in
Dongguan and Fuzhou accounted for HKD57.5 million;

(3) the losses of HKD101.4 million on account of weaker than
expected Haggar and Pony performances due to adverse
retail environment in the United States and the PRC; and

(4)  the remaining was due to increase in operating expenses and
loss incurred by our wholly-owned brand operations in the PRC
and Taiwan.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, other income of the Group
was HKD38.9 million (2007: HKD79.9 million). The difference was due
to a one-off written-off of unclaimed payables of HKD14.2 million, the
decrease in the recovery of bad debt provision of HKD13.1 million
and the remaining balance was resulted from a reduction of interest
income received by the Group.

During the year, the distribution and selling expenses increased by
66.3% to HKD127.8 million (2007: HKD76.9 million). The surge was a
result of the increase in labour and administrative cost arose out of
the increase in points of sale for our retail business in the PRC and
Taiwan, together with the additional commission paid to a new
customer and that paid to a long term customer for its rising volume
of sales orders for our manufacturing business.

During 2008, there was an exceptional cash of HKDé2.2 million
recorded in the Group's balance sheet which was credited from
an early redemption by CALYON and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited of the Company'’s structured deposits.
The cash has been used for the purchase of available-for-sale
investments upon redemption.

As at 31 December 2008, trade and other receivables of the
Company was HKD459.1 million (2007: HKD358.3 million) which was a
consequence of an increase in seasonal shipment that took place
in December 2008.

Moreover, at the end of 2008, the Company recorded bank
balances and cash of HKD281.0 million (2007: HKD519.5 million). The
difference was due fo a rapid expansion of branding and retailing
businesses in the PRC, dividend payment and the purchase of tax
reserve certificates during the year.
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Operation Review ¥&RIR

In 2008, the largest markets for the Group were North America and
Europe. Sales to North America comprised 49.6% (2007: 55.9%) and
orders to Europe comprised 31.6% (2007: 23.6%) of the total sales and
the remaining 18.8% (2007: 20.5%) was shared between Asia, Africa,
Australia, Latin America and the Middle East.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

The Group has an aggregate number of 37 production lines, of
which é are in Panyu, 8 are in Zhongshan, 8 are in Dongguan, 6 are
in Fuzhou, and a further 9 are in Vietham.

STORES NETWORK

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had directly managed and
franchised stores in mainland China and Taiwan for the retail and
wholesale of 3 globally renowned brands. Below is a breakdown by
geographical location and store type:

Speedo

Mainland China el N

Taiwan B
Pony

Mainland China N
MANGO

Mainland China N
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Operation Review ¥&RIH

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MAINTENANCE AND
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our extensive experience and working knowledge on the
manufacturing process, production materials and procurement
allows us to work closely with our customers to achieve quality
and efficiency and produce cost-effective products. Our dynamic
brands development team provides their expertise and foresighted
advice to our customers on the retfail and wholesale market in
mainland China. The maintenance of close relationship with our
customers has built an in-depth understanding of their needs so
that we are capable of anticipating and resolving their problems
expeditiously and effectively. Our research and development team
improves products design to maximize their comfort, endurance
and functionality, and where necessary, introduces new technology
to enhance their market appeal. Our value-added contributions
enable us to maintain our long-term partnership with our customers.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD281.0 million (2007: HKD519.5 million). The Group was offered
banking facilities amounting to HKD117.5 million (2007: HKD155.6
million), none of which had been utilized, indicating a zero gearing
ratio on the basis of fotal borrowings over shareholders’ fund. The
banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees from the
Company and its certain subsidiaries. There is currently no charge on
the Group's assefs.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, there are approximately 20,000 employees
in total for the Group. Employee cost (excluding directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD430.7 million (2007:
HKD374.8 million).

In addition fo competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and employee options are awarded to eligible staff of the
Group based on their performance and individual merits.

HEERTEARR R

AEBHEERRE HERMERBNEZL
BETHEND  BRMABEFETEIE - AR
HEEE SRERAELEERAMENER °
MAREZEENNRERTEKASTETER
DHEPRHEERAERNER - HMAT
FPRETBEREGMAATREPME Bk
BREREPAESMEE - WM ER AR
1% Byt P = ERAROR T0 B - AN SR E MV 5T K B
EERMERDEPRRAESNEMRA - BN
AREFEROITEE  WHAERNENE B
RERBERSIENRMURAERN TSRS
N ERATRPRMHEENR  RAKEKAE
PRI -

RBEERERRR

200812 A31H » REB M RITH &% N
IR & %$280,963,0007% 7T (2007 : 519,494,000
B MRTAAEERHEMRE HEE
117,500,000/ 7T.(2007 : 155,600,000/ 7T) ©
BEEIREECRDT  BTrREEEEY
BRESHPFENEEGBELER/ET - R17
METDAARRREETHERABELEE
R BT BEEAAEEEESKML

ADEIR

200812 A31H » AEENEEABOR
20,000\ * BER A (T BEEEBVE) AR
430,725,000/ 7T(2007 : 374,750,000 7T) ©

BEBEBRFINFMIN  AEBERERET
AR ESEMEARRERRIBEARER
BRRE -

FuEmERAT [ 432008



Board of Directors <

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Ting Chuen, aged 61, Chairman (Appointed on 9 March 2009)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen joined the Group in 1997. He graduated with
a Bachelor degree in civil engineering from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan is also a director of each of Royal Pacific Limited, First
Dynamic International Limited (“First Dynamic”) and Well Success
Investment Limited (“Well Success”), all of which are deemed or
direct substantial shareholders of the Company under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

Sze Sun Sun Tony, aged 57, Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director (Appointed on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 25 June
2007)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony joined the Group in 1997. He has over 28 years
of experience in investment and property development in Hong
Kong, mainland China and the overseas markets. Mr. Sze is also a
director of each of Alexon International Limited, First Dynamic and
Well Success. All of the three companies are deemed or direct
substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Chang Tsung Yuan, aged 61, Deputy Chairman (Appointed on 1
February 2005 and re-elected on 25 June 2007)

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan joined the Group aft ifs inception in 1990
and is the founder of the manufacturing business of the Group.
Mr. Chang is a substantial shareholder of Well Success, which is
the major shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, he indirectly
holds 48.83% interests in the Company. He is the President of the
manufacturing division of the Group. Mr. Chang has over 30 years of
experience and knowledge in the footwear manufacturing industry.

Chan Lu Min, aged 55, (Appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-elected
on 12 June 2008)

Mr. Chan Lu Min graduated from the Chung Hsing University in
Taiwan and possesses 29 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Mr. Chan is also an executive director of Yue Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen”) (HKSE: 00551), a company
engaged in shoes manufacturing that is lisfed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”). Yue Yuen is deemed
a substantial shareholder of the Company under the SFO.
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Ho Ting Seng, aged 61, (Appointed on 7 April 2006 and re-elected
on 12 June 2008)

Dr. Ho Ting Seng graduated from the University of Malaya and
holds both his Master and Doctor of Philosophy degrees from the
University of Pennsylvania, United States of America. He previously
worked as the first Chief Economist of Worldwide Operations at the
Federal Express Corporation. Afterwards, he ran his own consultancy
business specializing in multi-model logistics nefwork design to
support direct sourcing and distribution activities of manufacturer
clients in China and Asia.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li | Nan, aged 67, (Appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-elected on
12 June 2008)

Mr. Li | Nan has many years of experience in the footwear business
including sourcing and wholesale operatfions. He is an executive
director of Yue Yuen, a company engaged in shoes manufacturing
that is listed on the Exchange. Yue Yuen is deemed a substantial
shareholder of the Company under the SFO. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor
and a Master of Arts degrees from National Chengchi University in
Taiwan and the University of Southern California respectively. Mr. Li
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”).

Board of Directors <

il B 615R(R20065F 4 B7 RERE - W
20084 6 A 12 ¥ EEEE)

AEELTEXENERLIRE TRHEEESE
SANEEAREBELIRELEM - MFLET
Federal Express Corporation B 2 & &
BEGEM ERFE@EARBBER AP
BEODMNEERRBEIEERRBRSHES
HEEER YRR T -

FHITES

ZHE 7R (N20026F 6 A28 BESE - I
M 20084 6 A 12 BESEREE)

FERRENFTERRNEESZF  BPEER
BRUBER FTEEARRRFERRE - I
R ETNBTORTES - REH LM
EXZHOINEE  ZRARERBSAARH T
BRR - FREDHEBBRIBORABERE
BEMMNAEER B RXBELHE - Fk
ERBERARFEREZEENE(BRES

gl)-

gugEamas 9 &Hoo0s



Board of Directors <

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Cheng Kar Shing, aged 56, (Appointed on 4 June 1997 and re-
elected on 24 May 2006)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing holds a Master degree in engineering from
the University of California in Los Angeles, United States. Mr. Cheng
has been a director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited since
1984 and a director of New World Development Company Limited
(“New World Development”) since 1994. New World Development
is a company listed on the Exchange (HKSE: 00017). He is also an
executive director of New World China Land Limited, a company
listed on the Exchange (HKSE: 00917) and an independent non-
executive director of King Fook Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00280).
Mr. Cheng is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”).

Feng Lei Ming, aged 51, (Appointed on 12 May 2003 and re-elected
on 24 May 2006)

Mr. Feng Lei Ming graduated with an MBA in finance from the
University of Memphis, Tennessee, United States of America. Mr.
Feng has over 10 years of experience in the Hong Kong securities
industry and is a registered responsible officer of various regulated
activities with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.
He is currently the President of Taiwan Securities (HK) Co., Hong
Kong and TSC Capital Limited. He was responsible for sales planning
at National Electric Appliance Corp. and A.C. Nielsen in Taiwan
before he starfed to work in Hong Kong in 1994. Mr. Feng is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, aged 49, (Appointed on 30 December 2004 and
re-elected on 25 June 2007)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak is a certfified public accountant in Hong Kong.
He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in business administration and holds a Bachelor
of Laws degree from the Peking University. He previously worked for
a reputable infernational accounting firm and is currently running
his own business. Mr. Ho is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and is also an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho
is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The directors of Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or
“"Company”, together with its subsidiaries “Group”) ("Directors”)
have pleasure in presenting the annual report (*Annual Report”) and
its audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are manufacturing and frading of footwear,
frading, retailing and distribution of licensed products, property
investment and investments holding. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and jointly confrolled entities are set out in Notes 38 and
20 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 32 of the
Annual Report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. As
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
directors recommended the payment of HKDO.01 per share to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Wednesday, 3 June 2009 (“Shareholders”). The
total amount of final dividend payable is approximately HKD17.4
million, and the remaining loss of HKD243.9 million will be retained for
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’'s buildings and freehold land were revalued at
31 December 2008. The revaluation resulted in a deficit of
approximately HKD2.6 million which was charged directly to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Nofe 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MEEEAERAR (38 X (A28 ])) &R
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2008, the investment properties of the Group
were fair valued by an independent firm of professional property
valuers on an open market value basis. The net decrease in fair
value of approximately HKD32,050,000 was charged directly fo the
consolidated income statement.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the Shareholders were as follows:

Share premium B 175 (B
Contributed surplus B 5k ZR
Share options reserve R
Retained profits B 17 A

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 Annual Report 2008
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2008 2007
HKD’'000 HKD'000
TR T
364,638 364,638
63,561 63,561
14,137 15,343
70,598 58,791
512,934 502,333
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in the Company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are also available for distribution. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
conftributed surplus and share premium if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual
Report were:

Executive DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman) (appointed on 9 March 2009)
Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald (Chairman)
(resigned on 23 January 2009)
Mr. Chan Lu Min
Dr. Ho Ting Seng
Mr. Ku Edward Yu Sun (deceased on 30 March 2009)

NoON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li I Nan

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Mr. Chang Tsung
Yuan, Mr. Cheng Kar Shing and Mr. Feng Lei Ming retire and, being
eligible to, offer themselves for re-election af the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share optfion scheme adopted on
22 October 2001 (“2001 Scheme”) are set out in note 30 o the
consolidated financial statements.

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000 share opfions
fo eligible participants at an exercise price of HKD1.032 pursuant fo
the 2001 Scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2008, none of the
outstanding share options was exercised and 6,700,000 share
opfions were lapsed. As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate
number of share options outstanding was 78,510,000.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options of the
Company as af 31 December 2008:

B

ARRXFF 2001 10 A 22 B TR 2 B A g5t
21120015 & ) WEFIBE SN AR S B BHREK
BEE30 «

R 2006FE8 A2H © AR A #2001 5 &%
166,050,000i% i 1E T A B KL EE - FRIT
HER1.0328T -

REIZ2008F 12 A3 HILH B FE « EE K
i R AT 6 AY BB AR E AT 42 - T 6,700,000
MREBARIED K3 - M20085F12A31H » B
i i AR AT AR B B A 42 0% 78,510,000 % ©

2008512431 H - AR BB K i M ARITHE
PfE R S R B I TR

Number of outstanding
share options as
at 31.12.2008

Exercise price 7A2008%F12H31H

Date of grant per share EREMERTEN
RHBH BRITEE BREYSE
(dd.mm.yyyy) (HKD)
(B.A.%) (&)
Category I: Directors
18 E#=
Chan Lu Min EpEs 02.08.2006 1.032 5,000,000
Cheng Kar Shing BIR A 02.08.2006 1.032 500,000
Feng Lei Ming 5 A 02.08.2006 1.032 600,000
Ho Shing Chak A K% 02.08.2006 1.032 500,000
Ho Ting Seng fi] & 02.08.2006 1.032 4,000,000
Ku Edward Yu Sun BaAE 02.08.2006 1.032 16,500,000
Li I Nan FE5 02.08.2006 1.032 16,500,000
43,600,000
Category ll: Employees
%28 B8
Employees EE 02.08.2006 1.032 33,910,000
Category lll: Consultants
H3E A
Consultant A 02.08.2006 1.032 1,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at

31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the

Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”) pursuant to The
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers
(“Model Code”), were as follows:

LonG Positions

Ordinary shares of HKD0.25 each of the Company

EENMFETBRABNERZRRKR
PEMEBKRONER

BEEFRAERSEHIEIS2GREHBTH
BLMAHE - AREEEHARSMARAR
(TBXH]) LT RREFETESRHNR
EFRI(TREFR ) BMARF KB
2008 12H31H - ARFEEREETH
ABREZREE A TR AR R AR Z QA
Bty ~ B REFWEESORE N
T

rR

RNARIREEO0.25 B i E R

Number of issued ordinary shares held by

BEEFBERTRNEE Percentage of

spouse and/or the issued

children share capital of

beneficial under 18 controlled  discretionary the Company

Name Notes owner E@EK,/%  corporation trust Total EAARERT

gz Vi3 FHA  18EUATFZ BRoE 2RET #m RABDH

Chan Ting Chuen BRIl ] 5,000,000 - - 885285730 890,285,730 51.05%

Chang Tsung Yuan R ] 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 0.34%

Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald e 2 12,260,000 400,000 11,799,886 - 24,459,886 1.40%

Sze Sun Sun Tony HERTET ] - - 851,685958 - 851,685958 48.83%
Notes: et -

1.

As at 31 December 2008, Well Success Investment Limited (“Well
Success”) was directly inferested in 851,685,958 shares of the Company.
First Dynamic International Limited (“First Dynamic”) held more than
one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success.

As at 31 December 2008, Royal Pacific Limited (“Royal Pacific”)
had a direct interest in 33,599,772 shares of the Company
and held more than one-third of the issued share capital of
First Dynamic. Royal Pacific was wholly-owned by TC Chan
Family Holdings Limited (“TCCFHL"), which in turn was wholly-
owned by TC Chan Management (PTC) Limited (“TCCM(PTC)L"),
which is a trustee of a discretionary trust. Ultimately, Royal Pacific
was held by a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Chan Ting Chuen
(“Mr. Chan”) was the founder, and Mr. Chan together with his family
members were the discretionary beneficiaries.

1.

72008412 A31 8 » Well Success B A
AX7)851,685,958 fi##E s © First Dynamic #
B Well Success#1 =5 — KB BT -

#2008 12 A31H Royal Pacific
Limited ([Royal Pacific|) H#ZHAARQE
33,599,772 f¢ % + WiFA First Dynamic i
=5 —B#ITIRA - Royal PacificEATC Chan
Family Holdings Limited ([TCCFHL]) 2 & #
A TCCFHLAJIHTC Chan Management
(PTC) Limited ([TCCM(PTC)L]) 2 &% %A -
TCCM(PTC)LA— 2B EEMETLA M
Royal Pacific &4 2 — 2 REEHA - [RE
JEE(TREE]) RERERKE RZEFENE
BEAZHEA  BRELERRKAZEEETHR
A e

gusEsmas 15 #5008
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

LoNG PosiTioNs (CONTINUED)

Alexon International Limited (“Alexon”) held more than one-third of
the issued share capital of First Dynamic. Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr.
Sze") was interested in the entire issued share capital of Alexon and
was therefore deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 shares of the
Company.

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan was a substantial shareholder of Well Success, in
which he held 20% of its issued share capital.

2. Ever Growing Assets Limited (“Ever Growing”) was directly interested
in 11,799,886 shares of the Company. Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald
held the entire issued share capital of Ever Growing and was therefore
deemed to be interested in 11,799,886 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Options”, none of
the Directors, chief executives or their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2008.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Options”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
intferest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any fime during the year.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 6 Annual Report 2008
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

RIEFEF L HER F KPS 336 (5 E AR A
BEOETERRECMAE - RRAEERER
2008412 A 31 BFRF AR AR A B EITRA 2
MR KB IT

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2008, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

(1)  LoNG posiTIONS 1 k=
Ordinary shares of HKD0.25 each of the Company AATERO025BITHNEER

Number of issued

ordinary shares held by Percentage of
FECRTEER the issued share
deemed capital of the
direct interests Total Company
Shareholder Notes Capacity interests BRALE interests HADABET
BE i3 g% R i L BREBAL
Well Success ] Beneficial owner 851,685,958 - 851,685,958 48.83%
ZaA
First Dynamic ] Inferest of confrolled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEAEER
Alexon ] Interest of confrolled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEAEER
Mr. Sze Beneficial owner - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
i ZaA
Lau Yuk Wah (“Madam Lau”) Spouse - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
AFE(8zL)) [
Royal Pacific Beneficial owner and 33.599.772 851,685,958 885,285,730 50.76%
interest of confrolled
corporation
EHARXEEAEE
TCCFHL Interest of controlled - 885,285,730 885,285,730 50.76%

corporation
REENER

sugmsmas 17 #5008



Directors’ Report EE &

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED) FERR (&)

(1)  LONG POSITIONs (CONTINUED) (1) k=@

Number of issued

ordinary shares held by Percentage of
FEERATEER the issued share
deemed capital of the
direct interests Total Company
Shareholder Nofes Capacity interests BRARE interests EARFCRT
BE it g% ERRR i BEs BAEDE
TCCM(PTCIL 4 Trustee - 885,285,730 885,285,730 50.76%
BFEA
Mr. Chan 4 Beneficial owner, 5,000,000 885,285,730 890,285,730 51.05%
REE founder and
beneficiary of frust
FamA » EIERIAETEA
Ng Shuk Fong (“Madam Ng") Spouse and - 890,285,730 890,285,730 51.05%
S5 ([&&L)) beneficiary of frust
RERETIHEA
Frensham Investments Beneficial owner and 83,999,430 851,685,958 935,685,388 53.65%
Limited (“Frensham”) inferest of confrolled
corporation
EEARREEAER
Pou Yuen Industrial Inferest of controlled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.65%
[Holdings) Limited corporation
(*Pou Yuen”) REEABE
EnIX(5E)ERAR
(I&xrl))
Yue Yuen Industrial Limited Inferest of controlled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.65%
(“Yue Yuen Industrial”) corporation
HIIXERRA REENERE
(I
Pou Hing Industrial Inferest of controlled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.65%
Company Limited corporation
(*Pou Hing *) SEEAERE
SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED ] 8 Annual Report 2008
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED) FERFR (&)

(1)  LONG POSITIONs (CONTINUED) (1) ER&#E

Number of issued

ordinary shares held by Percentage of
FEERAIEER the issued share
deemed capital of the
direct interests Total Company
Shareholder Nofes Capacity interests BRARE interests EARFACRT
BE i3 g% R i L BAAS
Yue Yuen 2 Inferest of confrolled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.65%
#r corporation
REEAEER
Wealthplus Holdings Limited 2 Inferest of confrolled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.85%
("Wealthplus”) corporation
REEAEER
Pou Chen Corporation 2 Inferest of confrolled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.85%
(“Pou Chen") corporation
ERT%(5E8)ERAA AR
-2
Deccan Value Advisors L.P. 5 Investment Manager - 88,830,000 88,830,000 5.09%
RALE
Deccan Value Advisors LLC 5 Inferest of confrolled - 88,830,000 88,830,000 5.09%
corporation
REEAEE
Bodas Vinif (“Mr. Bodas") 5 Inferest of confrolled - 88,830,000 88,830,000 5.09%
(IBodas %4 ) corporation
BN
Bodas Uma Vinit (“Madam Bodas”) 5 Spouse - 88,830,000 88,830,000 5.09%
(TBodaszt]) il
Shah Capital Management Beneficial owner 89,638,000 - 89,638,000 5.14%
ZaA
UBS AG Beneficial owner 90,190,000 - 90,190,000 5.17%
ZaA

guemsras 19 =m0
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

m

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2008, Well Success was directly interested
in 851,685,958 shares of the Company. First Dynamic held more
than one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success. Each
of Royal Pacific and Alexon held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of First Dynamic. Accordingly, First Dynamic,
Royal Pacific and Alexon were deemed to be interested in
851,685,958 shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2008, Frensham had a direct interest in
83,999,430 shares of the Company and held more than one-third
of the issued share capital of Well Success and was therefore
deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 shares of the Company
(see Note 1). Frensham was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou
Yuen which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen
Industrial. Yue Yuen Industrial was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Pou Hing which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue
Yuen. Wealthplus, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Chen, held
over 35% interests in Yue Yuen. Accordingly, Frensham, Pou
Yuen, Yue Yuen Industrial, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus and
Pou Chen were or deemed to be interested in 935,685,388 shares
of the Company.

Madam Lau is the wife of Mr. Sze, a director of the Company.
As at 31 December 2008, Mr. Sze was interested in the entire
issued share capital of Alexon, therefore he was deemed to be
interested in 851,685,958 shares of the Company (see Note 1).
Accordingly, Madam Lau was deemed to be interested in a
total of 851,685,958 shares of the Company.

Madam Ng is the wife of Mr. Chan, a director of the Company.
Royal Pacific is wholly-owned by TCCFHL, which in turn is wholly-
owned by TCCM(PTC)L, which is a trustee of a discretionary trust.
Ultimately, Royal Pacific was held by a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Chan and his family members were the discretionary
beneficiaries and Mr. Chan was the founder. As at 31 December
2008, Royal Pacific was directly interested in 33,599,772 shares
and was deemed fo be interested in 851,685,958 shares of the
Company (see Note 1), therefore both Mr. Chan and Madam
Ng were deemed to be interested in 885,285,730 shares of the
Company. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was directly interested in
5,000,000 shares of the Company. Accordingly, Madam Ng was
deemed to be interested in a total of 890,285,730 shares of the
Company.

20  Annual Report 2008
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

(1)  LoNG POsITIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes: (continued)

5. As at 31 December 2008, Deccan Value Advisors L.P. was the
investment manager of entities holding in aggregate 88,830,000
shares of the Company and was thus deemed to be interested
in 88,830,000 shares of the Company. Deccan Value Advisors
LLC was a general partner of Deccan Value Advisors L.P. and
as a result was deemed to be interested in 88,830,000 shares
of the Company. Deccan Value Advisors LLC or its directors
are accustomed to act in accordance with the instructions
or directions of Mr. Bodas. Madam Bodas is the wife of Mr.
Bodas. Accordingly, each of Mr. Bodas and Madam Bodas was
deemed to be interested in 88,830,000 shares of the Company.

(2)  SHORT POSITIONS

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2008.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs"”), an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing Securities on the Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
largest and top 5 customers comprised approximately 31% and 78%
of the total sales of the Group respectively.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's 5 largest suppliers were less than 12% of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in
the share capital of the 5 largest customers of the Group.

FERR (&)
m rRE@E
Wizt : ()

5. #2008 12 A31 H 'Deccan LP. &
¥ AR F 4 88,830,000 B% #E & A
ETERNIRELE - At - Deccan
L.P. #4218 A+ A A2 7] 88,830,000 Ak 1
#  Deccan LLC ADeccan L.P.f
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88,830,000 & ###: - Deccan LLC S E
EEHERKBodas St EM ML HIEE
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting fo approximately HKD33,000 (2007: HKD88,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is set up by the board of
Directors of the Company (“Board”) on a basis of merit, qualification
and competence of the Group’s employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company fo offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company'’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the corporate governance report on pages 24 to 29 of this
Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

A resolutfion will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting fo re-appoint Messrs. Deloitfe Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ting Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries “Group”) recognizes the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance, aiming at
providing sufficient transparency, quality of disclosure as well as
effective risk control to investors.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, only with deviations
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
Directors of the Company (“Directors”) (including non-executive
Directors) were not appointed for a specific ferm but are subject to
refirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-law of the Company. Each
Director is effectively appointed under an average term of three
years.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The primary role of the board of Directors of the Company (“Board”)
is to protect and enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It focuses
on the Group's overall strategic policy, monitors performance
and offers proper supervision for effective management. As at 31
December 2008, the Board consisted of 11 Directors (including the
Chairman of the Board), amongst which 7 are executive Directors
and 4 are Non-executive Directors of whom 3 are independent.

The posts of Chairman and Managing Director (being defined as
Chief Executive Officer in the CG Code) are held separately by Mr.
Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald (Mr. Chan Ting Chuen with effect from 9
March 2009) and Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony respectively. The Chairman of
the Board provides leadership and management of the Board. On
the other hand, the Managing Director focuses on managing the
day-to-day operation of the business of the Group. This segregation
of roles ensures the reinforcement of their independence,
accountability and responsibility.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group's business to the
Managing Director and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy fo run and to develop the
business, the delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed by the Board.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”)
came from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
bringing in valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Company
has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs are independent.

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and
advice from the Company Secretary of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists the following
mempbers:

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Executive Director

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li I Nan

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and its structure for Directors
and senior management. The Remunerafion Committee assesses
performance and approves the terms of the service contracts (if
any) of executive Directors.

MEMBERS OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Feng Lei Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package comprises salaries, bonuses
and share incentive scheme. During the year under review, the
Remuneration Committee considered that the packages of the
executive Directors were fair and reasonable, faking info account
business performance, market practices and competitive market
conditions. Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated fo the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) was
established with specific written terms of reference (“Terms of
Reference”). The Terms of Reference is currently under review fo be
in line with the latest reform of the Listing Rules with effect from 1
January 2009. The Audit Committee oversees the audit process and
provides an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process and the internal control.

MEemBERs OF THE AubIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Lil Nan

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2008, the Audit Committee reviewed with external auditor, internal
auditors and senior management the annual results of the Group
as well as the accounting principles and practices being adopted,
internal control and financial reporting matters. Our Financial
Confroller, senior management, internal auditors and the external
auditors attended the meetings fo respond to any queries raised by
Audit Committee.
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND MINUTES

During the year under review, the Board conducted 8 meetings.
Management provided appropriate and sufficient information fo
the Directors and Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the latest developments of the Company to discharge
their responsibilities. The aftendance of individual members of the
Board and other Board Committees meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2008 is set out in the table below:

Directors Board
= BEEg
Executive Directors HITES

Chang Ting Chuen PREE) | 7/8
Sze Sun Sun Tony HEFTET 8/8
Chang Tsung Yuan EILV 5/8
Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald e 6/8
Chan Lu Min EpEss 5/8
Ho Ting Seng fi] & 8/8
Ku Edward Yu Sun BAAE 6/8
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Li I Nan FE5 5/8

Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITES

Cheng Kar Shing EIRAK, 5/8
Feng Lei Ming i 5/8
Ho Shing Chak A K% 5/8

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of
minutes of the Board and other Board Committees are sent to all
Directors or Committees members for comments and records within
areasonable tfime after the meefing.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee but shall
regularly review and consider whether such committee is required.
All appointments, resignations and removals of Directors and its
succession plan are subject to the approval of the Board.

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs) must
retire, becoming eligible for re-election at each annual general
meeting. This year, Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan, Mr. Cheng Kar Shing and
Mr. Feng Lei Ming shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and all being eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
Details of their biography are set out in the circular to shareholders.

On 23 January 2009, Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald resigned from
his offices as the chairman of the Board and the Director. On 30
March 2009, Mr. Ku Edward Yu Sun passed away. Currently, the
Board has 2 casual vacancies. The Board shall consider appointing
the successors to replace the two casual vacancies if appropriate.

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors has a service
confract with the Company or any members of the Group that
will not expire or is not determinable by the employer within 1
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, for audit services and
non-audit services for the financial years ended 31 December 2008
and 2007 is as follows:

NATURE OF SERVICES BRG1EE
Audit services BZIR
Other services IETAZ R

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2008 which give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy and
application of accounting, financial and other controls and
promoting effective control in the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the significance of maintaining an effective
fwo-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
management meetfs with research analysts and institutional
investors on an on-going basis and provides them with the
latest and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, the Company utilizes its
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) as a channel to provide
updated information in a fimely manner in order to strengthen the
communication with its stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
tfransaction of any business specified in such requisition.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float at over 40%
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.
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Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 112,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no ofther purpose. We do not
assume responsibility fowards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the enfity’s infernal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accountfing estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December,
2008 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement ZE5HEFR

For the year ended 31 December E/Z12H31H 1 F)E
2008 2007
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
HisF FERT FHET
Revenue ] 7 2,050,584 1,849,207
Cost of sales HEKA (1,768,865) (1,531,487)
Gross profit EA 281,719 317,720
Other income HAUWA 38,853 79,942
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERX (127,843) (76.852)
Administrative expenses THRFY (231,266) (184,707)
Other expenses Hpx (3.360) (3.392)
(Decrease) Increase in fair value KEWMENTEE
of investment properties (RA>) 18 m (32,050) 38,255
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZR 31 13,586 -
Impairment loss on goodwiill R ERIE (57,477) -
(Loss) Gain on fair value changes FHEEERENTEE
of held-for-trading investments BEH (EE) & (11,998) 7177
Share of results of jointly (ARG E R
controlled entities (101,409) (62,259)
Gain on disposal of HEMHEEREN AR
available-for-sale investments - 368
(Loss) Profit before tax FRALAT (E518) & 5 (231,245) 116,252
Taxation BIE 8 1,554 (18,21¢)
(Loss) Profit for the year FE (BE) R 9 (229,691) 98,036
Attfributable to: JEAE
Equity holders of the Company RATERFAA (226,508) 94,929
Minority interests DB R (3,183) 3,107
(229,691) 98,036
Dividends recognized as FRERA D IKE) 11
distribution during the year %8 38,369 164,072
(Loss) Earnings per share B (E1a) & F 12
Basic (HK cents) EAR GBI (12.99) 5.58
Diluted (HK cents) e (B N/A FE A 5.57
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepaid lease payments
Deposit paid for

acquisition of a property
Goodwill
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Structured deposits
Deferred tax assets
Club debentures

Current assets

Inventories
Amounts due from

jointly confrolled entities
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Tax recoverable
Held-for-frading investments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Amounts due tfo

jointly controlled entities
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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ME - BB RER
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BINHEERR
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EANEIEA
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BT
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mEEE

FE
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ANEERE
JEIRMIAE
BIEEERE
RITHHBEES
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JE A FK R

FRRIE

FEIFRIE

mEBEEFE
EEHEBERADEE

Notes

izt

13
14
15
16

17
20
21
22
28

23
20

24
15

25
26

27
20

At 31 December R12H31H
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
TR THL
282,741 260,660
112,450 144,500
50,203 48,155
- 9,200
- 57,477
206,021 249,195
54,366 23,085
- 62,240
10,085 11,326
2,003 2,003
717,869 867,841
269,148 277,719
50,692 32,710
459,061 358,317
1,301 1,206
9,714 -
4,055 428
280,963 519,494
1,074,934 1,189,874
395,027 421,041
28,006 8,792
55,641 53,419
478,674 483,252
596,260 706,622
1,314,129 1,574,463
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 58 EA B X

At 31 December R12H31H

2008 2007
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
Vi3 FHET TEL
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 28 9,925 18,425
Net assets BEEFE 1,304,204 1,556,038
Capital and reserves AR K
Share capital [N 29 436,011 436,011
Reserves i 835,362 1,084,657
Equity attributable to equity AT AFE A
holders of the Company e 1,271,373 1,520,668
Minority interests DER R R 32,831 35,370
1,304,204 1,556,038
The financial statements on pages 32 to 112 were approved and HREREBI2ENBERRTTBEEESRN
authorized for issue by the Board on é April 2009 and are signed on 2009F 4 A6 Btz R IFHET)E - WHTHIES
its behalf by: REEE
Sze Sun Sun Tony Chan Ting Chuen
e 7 T BRE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Za R BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRAEERAARE

Z 220084 12531 H I

Properfies Investments Share  Accumu-

Share revaluation revaluation Translafion  options lated Minority
Share  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits inferests
capital Rt MEER  REER EX  ERE git Toldl  YEBR Total
Rx &E fife e e R £ 3 Bi a3t
HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'0O0  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TRt TR A TEr  TEr  TAr Tt TEr  TEr TEn
THE GROUP ]
AT January 2007 RAVEIAIA 416176 288308 4591 - 21,53 2990 720398 1,480.868 3111518579
Surplus arising on revaluation of buldings ~ EREFHELNES - -1l - - - -1 -1
Gain on fair value changes of IREERENATERE
avaloble-forsale investments 2 - - - 943 - - - 943 - 943
Deferred fox fiabilty arising on ERBFEERELNEL
revaluation of buidings HHaE - - 189) - - - - 189) - 189)
Exchange ifferences arising on ENERAAEL
ranglation of foreign operations EiZE - - 152 - B3I - - 138 54 13810
Share of reserves of joinfly confrolled enffies (5 £RIEHEE R - - - - W % - an - un
Netincome recognized directlyinequity ~ ERRRAEZNMNFE - -0 315171 2 - 2065 54 2759
Profitfor the year £ - - - - - - 49N 499 3007 9803
Total recognized income and EERRI
expense for the year BARFE 8% - - 109% 943 1517 B 94909 121,99 3641 125635
Acauisiton of addifioncl inferest s
from minoriy inferest VaRERE - - - - - - - - 58Y 59
Exercise of share opfions e 19835 76330 - - - (14287 - 81878 - 81878
Lapse of share opfions KERE - - - - - (210) 70 - - -
Dividends paid (Nofe 11) BfifRE (F11) - - - - - - [164072) (164072 - [164072)
At 31 December 2007 HA07%12A318 436011 364,638 15477 93 36,706 15368 651,525 1,520,668 35,370 1556038
Deficit arisng onrevaluation of buldings ~~ EEAZHELNER - - (2608) - - - - (2609 - (2609)
Loss on foir value changes of AREERENATEE
avaloble-forsale invesiments ZENEE - - - (68%) - - - (88 - (88
Effect of changes in fox rafes HEEENTE - - 253 - - - - 253 - 253
Deferred fox asset arising on EREFEREREL
revaluation of buidings EthEEE - - 440 - - - - 440 - 840
Exchange differences arsing on randafion AN ERHE LR
of foreign operations EiZE - - 901 - 26400 - - nam o4 27945
Share of reserves of jointly controlled entities (E£FEH/ZE R - - - - (3083) (25) - (3108 - (3108)
Net income/expense recognized ERIRARRA
diectly in equity WA/ B8 - - 1) (889 2317 (25) - 1558 o4 162
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (26508) (226508)  (3183) (229.491)
Total recognized income and EEREN
expense for the year NG - - (811)  (48%9) 2317 (25) (226508) (210926)  (2539) (213465)
Lapse of share opfions Xiweeig - - - - - (1206 1206 - - -
Dividends paid Nofe 11) BARE () - - - - - - (38360 (38369) - (38369)
At 31 December 2008 10085128318 436011 344638 14,688 (5,95 60023 14137 387854 12713713 32831 1304204
FueEsRAT 35 #0008



Consolidated Ccsh FIow Statement ZIRE5H £

H31F

For the year ended 31 December #

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interestincome
Dividends from equity investments
Impairment loss on goodwill
Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Depreciation and amortization of property,

plant and equipment
Amortization of prepaid lease payments
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Decrease (increase) in fair value
of investment properties
Recovery of allowance for bad
and doubtful debfs
Allowance for inventories
Unclaimed payables written-off

Operating cash flow before

movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in invenfories
Increase in amounts due from

jointly controlled entities
Increase in frade and other receivables
Decrease in held-for-trading investments
Decrease in frade and other payables

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Purchase of tax reserve certificates
Overseas tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

geEg
BRI (B51R) 71
HE:
MEHA
EHFRARBHA
ﬁ%\ﬁzfﬁ@ﬁ%
HEEHEESS
4%¥ R R
FrEmEE
BENREN R
HENE - BERRE
(Wat) BE
HEMHEE
K&
HEMBLRKE
REMEATER
HD (B )
REFAE
(Bl
FEEE
MR A B REENERN

EESEER
n&’&ﬁfﬂﬁmu
FERD ()
FE(THREEH T
SFEM
B 5 R Ef R BRFE AN
HIEEERERD
B 5 REMEMNETAD
(BR)REELEBNERS
BEHENS
ﬁ??l\ﬁlﬁ

B (EM)EEREHR

(AR REBEEDNREFE
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Notes
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31

:z‘: =

z J)IL z%
2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD’000
TR THL
(231,245) 116,252
(11,784) (27,344)
(2,293) (1,189)
57,477 -
101,409 62,259
40,354 39,305
1,301 1,206
(66) 5
- (3¢68)
(13,586) -
32,050 (38,255)
(2,850) (15,930)
2,114 4714
- (14,237)
(27,119) 126,418
22,447 (35,873)
(17.982) (30,631)
(88,929) (36,439)
1373 (428)
(32,744) (10,489)
(142,954) 12,558
(9.714) -
(3,079) (1981)
377 (2,459)
(155,370) 8,118




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %T/\fﬁﬁumg%

For the year ended 31 December Z,Z12H3
2008 2007
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
Vi3 FEx TET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of investment properties BERENE (87,222) (13,185)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BFEREE (51,329) (23,986)
Increase in available-for-sale investments HJDT iﬁ’%?ﬁﬁ (38,180) -
Loan to a jointly controlled entity -5 HT“%‘ (34,713) (28,062)
Advance to jointly controlled entities %ﬁm bk /\E@ (26,630) -
Increase in prepaid lease payments i*ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁff\m (1,944) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ‘% DEYNG e 31 96,000 -
Decrease in structured deposits BB 62,240 -
Inferest received Eﬂﬁlﬂ 11,784 27,344
Dividends received from equity investments BUEHRERE 2,293 1,189
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment RfEOYE 1,616 30
Increase in deposit paid for acquisition BEREME
of investment property ERESEMm - (8,711)
Acquisition of additional interest WEERIM B
from minority inferest PR - (5,982)
Purchase of club debentures BEEHMES - (2,003)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHRIEE
available-for-sale investments REMME - 8,232
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRREZHHNESTE (66,085) (45.134)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETH
Dividends paid EARE (38,369) (164,072)
Advance from a jointly controlled entity A— R ERRHR 19,214 8,291
Proceeds from issue of shares BTl - 81,878
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ARBEZTHNRSTE (19,155) (73,903)
NET DECREASE IN CASH BeRRSEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OB (240,610) (110,919)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AAREREEEEY
BROUGHT FORWARD i3 519,494 627,706
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES PEEXEENTE 2,079 2,707
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD £EHERBREESENE
represented by bank balances and cash BTSRRI S 280,963 519,494

FugEEaRAT 37 &H2008



GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries “Group”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Exchange”). The parent and the ultimate holding company
is Well Success Investment Limited (“Well Success”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The address
of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Sireet,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal place of business
of the Company is at the 10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510
King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (*USD"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and trading of footwear, frading, retailing and distribution
of licensed products, property investment and investment
holding. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 38.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) —Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #2008 1231 H 1 F/E
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Success Investment Limited ([Well
Success)) s AR A FMPEE A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Sireet,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 B #& 55 % Hi

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #t 220084 12431 H 1FF/E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

R REERTERMBE®R
HFEA(EFRMBREEN )
(&)

7R R AR T R A TSI B A A R

AR RAG S AT R - AT AR
=-

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS

39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs!

Presentation of Financial
Statements?
Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements®

Puttable Financial Insfruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible hedged items®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?

Business Combinations®

Improvement Disclosures about
Financial Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives*

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate?
Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation®
Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners®
Transfers of Assets from Customers’

BRI RS
(BATK)

EREERE R
(11E7T)

BB GR35
(&fg3])

BREHENS 2%
(1{E7T)

BREHEAS 23R
EACHES!

BleEER IR
(BATE)

ERUTHHEENE 15
REEGERFE T

EACCHES!
BRI REENE 25
(BATE)
BEMBREENFIH
(1{E7T)
RERBRERENET
(EATE)

BRI REERZ R
7R (BRHBRE2E
ZEE)-REFVR
ERETHERE 395
(BATK)
T (ARIHRE2E
ZEE)-REFI3N
T (ARTHRERE
ZBE)-REFR 1A
T8 (AR BRERE
ZEE)-2EFH16H
B8 (BRI BRERE
ZEE)-RBER
TR (BARGBRE2E
ZRE)-REFI8HE

BRI RERR 2008
HBHRNES?
fEEpA?
Fa RBUMBHRE®
MHESRITARERK
EEMAL
AAREMAR®
RETBLRR - AREHE
BRBERRNREAR

$2
GBI Rati?

ERTARE M

#

fi

FHal

fET A

St

it

REEERE

BARBREFRMA

AREADRFREEE®

BEFBBAE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008

7 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in the
Group's ownership inferest in a subsidiary. The directors of
the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #&3R R i =F

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1| F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BAsIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities confrolled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

FESFEE

A A BB R YR 8B S K AR
2 EETHERSMTANRKER
ERATFBETHE - KT REHBE
GELER

FEAMBHRRDEREESHINAE
BHNETEMBRELENMEER I
I RERAMBHRERBEKREEEHA
REMERAR (BRI ESF ETR
BN £ R Al )) 8 & ECD RGP AT E
FRHY I EE 25K

A aMBHRREFRRRARARFE
HERE (K E DR W TEIRE - 25
BNEEARTARIES —HEEBNY
BREBHRE  WHREFHTESHE -

REABEXIHENNBRAREEER
WEAMBRBEHE LKA E(HE
)RR BRRATIER -

2 WEARNMBHREEHEN
VAV & 78 £2 B E Ak B RT3 AR
BRI -

gugmsraz 41 #mo00s
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #(E2008F 12H31H 1 F/&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BAsIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the inferests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognized at their

fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognized. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of

the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1| F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Additional interests in subsidiaries are measured af the
aggregate of the carrying amounts of identified assets
and liabilities of the subsidiaries and any excess of the
consideration over the net assets acquired are accounted for
as goodwill. Any excess of the net assets acquired over the
consideration is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

GoobpwiLL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalized goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalized is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its intferest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognizing its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognized only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identified assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity fransacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s
interest in the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

JOINT VENTURES
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
conftrolled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substances, form part of the Group's net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognizing ifs
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognized only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly confrolled entity.

Any excess of Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity fransacts with a jointly confrolled entity of
the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the jointly confrolled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties let under operating leases, is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the period of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment have been
established.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair value less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is stated
at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the
balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of freehold
land and buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve,
excepft fo the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of
the same asset previously recognized as an expense, in which
case the increase is credited fo the consolidated income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an
asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retrement of a revalued asset, the aftributable revaluation
surplus is tfransferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of tfransfer is recognized in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item
is derecognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is de-recognized.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the ferms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognized as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a sfraight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire contract is generally freated as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, fransactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognized directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognized directly in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
franslated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized as a separate component of equity (franslation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced fo the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is seftled or the asset
is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

CLUB DEBENTURES

Club debentures are stated at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF TANGIBLE ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is freated as revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which are the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the insfrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly atftributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTIPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a frade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets designated
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held-for-trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-tfrading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the enfire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1| F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
amount due from jointly controlled entities, frade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortized cost using the effective intferest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables.

At each balance sheet date subsequent fo initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is removed from equity and recognized
in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
tfo and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered fo be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganization.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference befween
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1 F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognized directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instfruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contfractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amount due to jointly controlled entities) are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit
or loss. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognize the financial asset and recognise a collateralized
borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 220084 12431H 1 F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognized as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognized in share option reserve will
be fransferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited, i.e. share options lapse as a result of resignation of
employees, after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognized in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognized as expenses with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the counterparties render
services, unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.
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SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs and
liabilities within the next financial year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

Detftermining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
tfo which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The Group recognized
a full impairment loss of approximately HKD57,477,000 during
the year. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 18.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return fo stakeholders through the optimization
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(»)

O]

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS SREE

Fair value through profitorloss — #BB@REATEEE
- held-for-trading investment —HIEEENRE
- structured deposits —BRIEER

Loans and receivables EHRIEYRR
(including bank (BIERITES
balances and cash) kEE)

Available-for-sale A EEE
financial assets SREE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SHBE

Amortized cost BRHEAAR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from/to
jointly controlled entities, trade and other receivables,
held-for-trading investments, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

6.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

E22008F 1231 H 1FF/E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
of the Group's monetary assets and monetary
liabilities that were denominated in a currency (i.e.
HKD) other than the functional currency (i.e. USD)
of the relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in
USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign
currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged to
usSD.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and loan to
a jointly controlled entity. The Directors consider
the Group's exposure to fair value interest rate risk
is not significant as interest bearing bank deposits
and loan to a jointly confrolled entity are within
short maturity periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate structured deposits
and bank deposits. It is the Group's policy to keep
its deposits at floating rate of interests so as to
minimize the fair value interest rate risk.
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6.

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group's HKD denominated
bank deposits and USD denominated structured
deposits respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyzes below have been
determined based on the exposure to inferest
rates for both derivative and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. The
analysis is prepared assuming these financial
insfruments outstanding at the balance sheet
date was oufstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 would increase/
decrease by approximately HKD863,000 (2007:
increase/decrease by HKD729,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate structured deposits and
bank deposits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 220084 12431 H 1 F/Z
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SWMI A (E)
(8)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED) ;) SRERSEBEEZRBEE(H)
Market risk (continued) ik (&)
(i) Other price risk (i) A EEE R

AEEHBEAREHEFR
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AEENEMBEREREE
SPREBRZrENERE
EEETERARNBEATA
REBRBIAIMEER BT RE
ERERSLIRITIRIEE AR
EH T A - BRULASH - R&E
BZk—FEKM - AR
HiERRAR  XREELE

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in both equity and debt securities.
The Group's other price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments operating in footwear
manufacturing industry sector quoted in the
Exchange and debt instruments operating in
insurance and banking services listed outside
Hong Kong. In addition, the Group has appointed
a special team to monitor the other price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyzes below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price

risks at the reporting dafe.

If the prices of the respective listed equity and

debt instruments had been 5% higher:
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o loss for the year ended 31 December 2008 .
decrease by approximately HKD169,000
(2007: profit for the year increase by
HKD18,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-tfrading investments; and

. investment valuation reserve would increase o
approximately by HKD1,794,000 (2007:
increase approximately HKD230,000) for the
Group as aresult of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(8)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Other price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective listed equity and
debt instruments had been 5% lower:

loss for the year ended 31 December 2008
increase by approximately HKD16%,000
(2007: profit for the year decrease by
HKD18,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-frading investments; and

investment valuation reserve would
decrease approximately by HKD7,750,000
(2007: only investment valuation reserve
decrease approximately HKD230,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments,
which will be charged to consolidated
income statement, increasing the loss for the
year of the same amount.

The Group's sensitivity to available-for-sale
investments and held-for-frading investments has
changed significantly from the prior year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

6.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

HE2008F12H31HIFFJZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognized financial assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet.

In order fo minimize the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a feam responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow up action is
taken to recover overdue debfts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
frade debt at each balance sheet date fo ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credif risk is significantly reduced.

At 31 December 2008, the credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by infernational credit-rating
agencies.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had concentration of
credit risk in relation to bank balances as 89% (2007: 82%)
of balances are placed with 5 banks (2007: 5 banks).

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables as 29% (2007: 33%) and
81% (2007: 74%) of the Group's total trade receivables
were due from its largest customer and the five largest
customer respectively. The credit risk in relation fo these
receivables is limited because they are multinational
corporations with well established brand names and
market positioning.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1| F/Z
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ERMIT A (HE)
(8)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED) (s) 2EEMREEBZERBEGE)
Liquidity risk RBESER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REBRBESRRAAE @ AEE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash EERERALSEEREERREN
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to BAEEREES RAERS RIS
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects TENRERRSEEWMAKFE -
of fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the Group's remaining TRAMANEENIENTECRBE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial MBREHOTFH  DERSRAEN
liabilities. Based on the undiscounted cash flows of KRUBRBASRERIZAERERSR
financial liabilities according to the earliest date on BRBEEmMERT - AREEER
which the Group can be required to pay. The table EMHAE RLFE -
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEBE & R FIF B R &
Carrying
Total amount
undiscounted at
Less than 1-3 cash  31.12.2008
1 month months flows 200845
PR 12 RERR 128318
1188 3MEA EEt] HEREE

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TET TET FET

2008 2008
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FTECREE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBEMNRR 187,920 83,141 271,061 271,061
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities R EF#H 2 FUE 28,006 - 28,006 28,006
215,926 83,141 299,067 299,067
Carmying
Tofal amount
undiscounted at
Less thon 13 3months cash — 31.12.2007
1 month months  to 1 year flows — H2007%
SR 3 A RMEBE  12A%1A
1A 3R E1E fREE  MEEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Thn 5 5 a7 TEn
2007 2007
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HitcRaR
Trade and other payables BAREMERER 171958 111,514 26,532 310,004 310,004
Amounts due to jointly controlled enifies BALREHEENE 8,792 - - 8792 8792

180,750 111,514 26,532 318,796 318,796

FuEEaRAT O/ &H008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 220084 12431 H 1FF/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)  Far vALUE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and fraded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

. the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortized cost
in consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

No business segment analysis is presented as less than 10%
of the Group's revenue and contribution to results are
contributed by activities other than the manufacture and
sales of footwear products.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
An analysis of the Group's revenue and conftribution to
segment results, assets and liabilities by geographical markets

based on location of customers, irespective of the origin of
the goods, is presented below:
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(CONTINUED)

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

2008

REVENUE
External sales

RESULTS
Segment results

Unallocated income
Impairment loss on goodwill
Unallocated expenses
Share of results of jointly
confrolled entifies

Loss before tax
Taxation

Loss for the year

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in jointly
controlled entities
Deferred tax assets
Taxrecoverable
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Allowance for inventories

Reversal of allowance for
bad and doubtful debts

HOMEE

BHABE

#a

EEBR

i

DEAE

(BHEEHEE
g

BREHRBEE

ERHR

AELKEE

RRAEME

FEfIHA
BERBAE

Et AR

FERA

REERE
(el

Bl 2008F 12H31HIFFE

7. EBRUES I (E)
& D E (4)
2008

United
States of Consoli-
America  Canada Europe Asia  Australia Others dated
%6 JIIEYN B Yl bl Hth )
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
THER TERT THER TERT THER THERT THER
924,335 93572 646,941 252,655 22,276 110,805 2,050,584
44213 4,474 30,945 15,327 1,065 5300 101,326
40,125
(57.477)
(213,810)
(101,409)
(231,245)
1,554
(229,691
328,253 33230 229,743 89,724 7911 39,348 728,209
206,021
10,085
9,714
838,774
1,792,803
178,065 18,026 124,628 48,672 4,291 21,345 395,027
55,641
9,925
28,006
488,599
953 9 867 261 23 114 214
(1,285) (130) (899) (351) (31) (154) (2,850)

guzEsras 09  #imoo0s
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(CONTINUED)

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment assets consist of inventories, trade receivables and
other operating assetfs. Segment liabilities comprise certain
frade payables. Property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments are not directly atftributable to individual
customer and cannot be allocated fo the segments on a

reasonable basis.

2007

REVENUE
External sales

RESULTS
Segment results

Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Share of results of jointly
confrolled entifies

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

ASSETS
Segment assets

Interests in jointly confrolled entities

Deferred tax assefs
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated fotal assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Allowance for inventories

Reversal of allowance for
bad and doubtful debts

Unclaimed payables
written-off

EXE

HHNHE

E

DEFRE

RABRA

ROERX

EHEZHER
E

BB ARR

B

FERH

BE

DEEE
EEFEHERER
EERBEE

KA CEEE
GREERE

afE

%%EE
ERHE
ERFKEE
FARCEARE

hREfLE

Ef AR

FafE

REFAE
BEE

s B A B R A
FEfTER

S

S
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7. XEBRED I (E)
& & ()
”%é&a%ﬁh B 5 RWER A
hWEEEE- DHEABERSETESRE
NEER - W% - BELRRBRANES
REXNRHENEFEZE DL @
BRI DITED -
2007
United
States of Consoli-
America  Canada Europe Asia Australia Others dated
*E meX B T BN i ma
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
FET AR FET AR FET AR FET
939,056 95,357 436,629 225894 27,216 125,055 1,849,207
123,101 12,500 57,238 31,060 3,568 16,392 243,859
87,249
(152,597
(62,259
116,252
(18216
98,036
322,988 32798 150,179 77,696 9,361 43014 636,036
249,195
11,326
1,161,158
2057715
213811 21712 99,415 51,433 6,197 28473 421,041
53,419
18,425
8792
501,677
2,394 243 1,113 576 70 318 4,714
(8,089) (821) (3.761) (1.946) (234) (1.079)  (15,930)
- - - (14,237) - - (14,237)
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HZ20084 12531 H 1 F)

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(CONTINUED)

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment assets consist of inventories, trade receivables and
other operating assets. Segment liabilities comprise certain
frade payables. Property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments are not directly attributable to individual
customer and cannot be allocated to the segments on a
reasonable basis.

The following table is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets and capital additions, analyzed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

7.

ERRitED B (F)

HEDE (4)

DHMEERREE  BZRUEREE
WEEEE - DHARBEETEIRE
MERF - W% BFERRBLEBENMEE
RIAL T RBENEFEE NG - B
AR TEDES -

TR 275 54 & B A R A AOR
B RARAMTELE N

Carrying amount

of segment assets Capital additions
AREERAEE BXRE

2008 2007 2008 2007

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

TR TET TR TET

Hong Kong B 454,613 343,923 103,806 15,989
The People’s Republic of R AR AAE

China ("PRC") (@] ) 266,123 287,699 37,823 15910

Others Hity 7473 4414 8,066 5272

728,209 636,036 149,695 37,171

susmsmas (1 #mo00s



TAXATION
Current tax: RERIA -
Hong Kong aBE

- current year —RFE

—under(over)provision in prior years
Other jurisdictions EfhRDERSE
- current year —RFE

— (over)underprovision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 28) RIERIE (B3 28) ¢
- current year —KEE

Taxation attributable to the RN B REME QA
Company and its subsidiaries FEIRTHIE

Hone Kong Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax
rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

In March 2008, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") issued
protective profits tax assessments, for an aggregate additional
tax of approximately HKD15.4 million, relating to the year of
assessment 2001/2002, that is, for the financial year ended 31
December 2001, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

The Group has lodged objections with IRD against the
protective assessments. IRD has agreed to hold over the tax
claimed subject to the subsidiaries’ purchase of tax reserve
certificates (“TRCs") of approximately HKD?,714,000. These
TRCs were purchased by the subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2008, no provision is considered necessary in respect of the
amount of HKD9,714,000 included in fax recoverable.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 Annual Report 2008

—BEFETR (BF) BE

—BEFE (B TREE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 74 Bf #&R R i =F

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z20084% 12431 H I} F/Z

BiE

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
TR THT
37 911
a2 2)
4,670 6,655
(307) 28
4,812 7,592
(6,366) 10,624
(1,554) 18,216

BERIE

MN2008%E6H26H » EA L EEREB
20084 U A f& 5 - & 2008,72009 #f
REER DEMNESHEHIZ5%RA
16.5% ° At - BEFIEHTIEFRGE
JFE R E AR R 16.5% (2007 : 17.5%)
RTE -

72008437 - BB ((HBER/)EL—
MREEERIH  FEAQAET
> EFEAKN B AR 2001,/2002FF
HZE2001F 12831 BEFREFE LN
FEAZ - BBANRE R B EEHY B 15,400,000 7
5o

FEBERZRELEITOBBHRES
R - B RR B &SP RS 2 8
o EZEMBARARZERNEE
g B % 189,714,000 7% 7T &9 7 B 7 ([ &%
REHE) ZEMBRARCBEZRER
% ° R2008F 12 A31 H @ EAZE A
TR BHE -
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Tax (conTiNuED)

Directors believe no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in
respect of profective assessments is necessary. In addition,
the inquiries from IRD are still at a fact-finding stage and IRD
has not yet expressed any formal opinion on the potfential
tax liability, if any. The potential tax liability, if any, cannot be
readily ascerfained at this stage.

In March 2009, the IRD issued protective profits tax
assessments, for an aggregate additional tax of
approximately HKD27.7 million, relating to the year of
assessment of 2002/2003, that is, for the financial year ended
31 December 2002, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company.

Directors believe that no profits tax is payable by the Group
in respect of the concerned subsidiaries and no provision for
Hong Kong profits tax in respect of the profective assessments
is considered necessary. The Group infends fo lodge
objections with the IRD against the protective assessments.

PRC Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the tax status for
certain subsidiaries of the Group operatfing in the PRC,
including Zhongshan Jingmei Footwear Industry & Commerce
Co Limited FILIEEEZEBR AR (“Zhongshan Jingmei”),
Fuging Grand Galatica Footwear Co. Ltd. {& 8= AE
BRAF (“Fuqing Grand Galatica”), Guangzhou Panyu
Xingtaiy Footwear Industry & Commerce Co. Ltd. EINES
EIZREEFR AR (“Panyu Xingtaiy”) and Zhongshan Huali
Footwear Industry & Commerce Co Ltd. F LR P EGR AT
(“Zhongshan Huali"), are as follows:

. Zhongshan Jingmei and Zhongshan Huali were
exempted from PRC income tax.

o Tax relief for Fuging Grand Galatica had expired in 2006

and the concessionary tax rate for 2007 was 7.5%.

o Tax relief for Panyu Xingtaiy had expired in 2005 and the
concessionary tax rate for 2007 was 12.0%.

Big ()
&8 5E ()

EFREAKREERAEZREETITA
FRNBRETEE - B BHBEHY
EANERERE  HEBLARERE
MEERBEEHA)NERER - ©
BRI REERBEE(HE) Rk
HEREE o

20094637 - BB H — 1 RE NPT
SHAB EEARAET2EERN
B AR 2002,72003F F + #Z=2002F
12 A 31 BIEBRFER BB Z - 8o
SPA AR ER A /5 27,700,000 7 7T

BEER A AREEENEQRLERE
MRS TEEZEBREEMER
FEMERELTEMNGHER ~%
M 4R 1) [0 5 7% B IE S0 b R B s AR BB 1
PRISHaTS -

HhE B

RE E2007F12A318EFE - &
EEETRTBRECENMNBRRNHRKG
AR BIERILBEEEBR AR ([ H
WEXE]) BERAEXERAA(E
BEAD ENEEHEZEEFRAA
([BEBEK|) RPLUEMNGEBRAFR
(THLER )T

o PILEE R R oo B

. T8IE B KBS % B 7 2006 4
& M2007FMEERER
7.5% ;

. =B B RE R R N 2005 F

fE R - 2007 F ) B EH X R
12.0% °
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

PRC Tax (coNTINUED)

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“New Law”) by Order No.
63 of the President of PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of
the New Law (“Implementation Regulations”). The New
Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax
rate tfo 25.0% for certain subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. According to the Circular of the State Council on
the Implementation of Transitional Preferential Policies for
Enterprise Income Tax (Guofa [2007] No. 39), certain fax
exemption and deduction for the PRC Foreign Enterprise
Income Tax (“FEIT”) is still applicable until the end of the five-
year fransitional period under the New Law.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the tax status of
each of the above companies under the New Law and the
Implementation Regulations are as follows:

. Zhongshan Jingmei and Zhongshan Huali continued to
enjoy the preferential tax treatment (12.5% tax rate, i.e.
50% of the applicable tax rate of 25.0%) for the years
from 2008 to 2010. Thereafter, the tax rate will step up to
25.0% from 2011 onwards;

. Fuging Grand Galatica contfinued fo enjoy the
preferential tax freatment, i.e., 2.0% (50% of the
applicable tax rate of 18.0%) for the year 2008 and 10.0%
(50% of the applicable tax rate of 20.0%) for the year
2009. Thereafter, the tax rate will step up to 22.0%, 24.0%,
25.0% from 2009 to 2011 respectively;

o The preferential tax treatment for Panyu Xingtaiy
was cancelled starting from 2008. Accordingly, the
applicable tax rate was 25.0%.

Other PRC subsidiaries not subject to the tax exemption and
deduction for the FEIT that is still applicable until the end of
the five-year fransitional period under the New Law a tax
rate of 25.0% will be applicable pursuant fo the New Law and
Implementation Regulations.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

VietNnam Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Stateway Vietham Footwear Co. Ltd (“Stateway Vietnam”)
was entitled fo an exemption from enterprise income tax for 4
years starting with the first profit-making year. For the following
nine years, Stateway Vietnam would be entitled to a further
tax preferential fax freatment in the form of a 50.0% reduction

in the applicable tax rate in Vietnam.

OTHERS

Taxation arising in ofher jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled fo the (loss) profit
per the consolidated income statement as follows:

(Loss) Profit before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits

Tax rafe of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)
Tax effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of share of results

of jointly confrolled entities
Underprovision in respect of prior year
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized
Effect of fax exemptions granted

to certain subsidiaries
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions
Decrease in opening deferred

tax liability resulting from

a decrease in applicable tax rate
Deferred taxation on withholding

tax arising on undistributed

profits in PRC subsidiaries

Taxation for the year

B (518) EH

REBNGHE6.5%HEHIA

(2007 : 17.5%)
MEMRFIBRORY
BT E

EHREHEREE
RERE
BREFETREE
RETRBERI BB E
BYETHEBAR
IHBERETE
I E A R AR R
(i =YNSIENGR A7
BB LA
EERB A EE
Miaerm D
TENBARADER
MPRELNRABIEE
2]

RERBA

In addition to the amount credited to the consolidated
income statement, deferred tax relating to the revaluation of
the Group's properties was charged or credited directly to

equity (see Note 28).

L2 2008F 1231 H 1FF/&

Big ()
e

e () CEERAR ([ FBEMAE])
EAFHBH R LB EERSRNFE
FInERERIF  HEBERITZAES
BB - AR 50.0% 8 & K FTE
AR

Hity

HibrDERIKFTELMNTIE - Tk
AVEBBMIRITH R H -

REEHRMX BERARERETE (8
B REMEHRAT

2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR THT
(231,245) 116,252
(38,155) 20,344
13,661 5,588
(5,082) (9.547)
16,732 10,895
105 2%
11,409 2,145
(2,237) (11,605)
875 370
(209) -
1,347 -
(1,554) 18216

Bt A BEERBERNSE  REH
BIiEEERBRA R R ANRE
EEEHE(RHE28) -

FuEEERAT (D #5008



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 74 Bf #&R R i =F

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #(E2008F 12H31H 1 F/&
9.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FE(FB)ER
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHT
(Loss) Profit for the year has REF (BE)HHE
been arrived at after charging: R TF)EIE
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) E= Rk 8,214 7.361
Other staff costs HAhE B 430,725 374,750
Retirement benefits schemes RIRERET IR -
contributions, excluding Directors THEEES 16,177 13,593
455,116 395,704
Auditors’ remuneration TZE RN € 2,565 2,399
Allowance for inventories GFEBIK 2,114 4,714
Amortization of prepaid A HEE IR
lease payments 1,301 1,206
Cost of inventories recognized ERARAZH
as expense FERA 1,768,865 1,531,487
Depreciation e 40,354 39,305
Exchange losses P& 5 518 12,263 6,479
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BE KRE
plant and equipment HIEsE - 5
Research and development costs R
(included in administrative PR R
expenses) (PREITHRX) 38,282 32,615
and after crediting as REFTARBEAA -
otherincome:
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEIREN
plant and equipment Bk 66 -
Reversal of allowance for bad RIBAREHE
and doubtful debts [o] #% 2,850 15,930
Dividends from equity investments BRI ERRE 2,293 1,189
Exchange gains P& 3 e 1,974 4,210
Gross rental income from KREMENHES
investment properties ON L 4,147 2,206
Less: direct operating expenses A RAFEEERSIAR
from investment properties REMEEE
that generated rental income LR
during the year (1,084) (591)
3,063 1,615
Interest income from: BN
Bank deposits HRITIFR 7,680 26,143
Structured deposits ERMTER 398 345
Available for sale investments A EMRE 194 168
Trade debtors (Note) BHEBHA M) 49 150
Loans to a jointly controlled entity BT —HEEHEE 3,463 538
Unclaimed payables written-off WHE A B R ERNRIE - 14,237
Note: Interest was charged to trade debtors with extended credit Mzt : B HEBANF LU EN A 7T RTERE
terms. 16K o
SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED /@3 Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 Bt iR R K

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #[Z20084 12431 H 1FF/E

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEWERIEESFH N
EMOLUMENTS
A.  DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS A EEHS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven BT ER114 (2007 - 11 &) E
(2007: eleven) Directors were as follows: EMMESAOT ¢
Li Kwok
Chan  Chang  Cheng Feng Ho Ho Ku i Lung Sze
Chan Ting  Tsung Kar lei  Shing Ting  Edward | Alfred  SunSun

luMin  Chuen Yuan  Shing Ming  Chak Seng  YuSun Nan  Ronald Tony Total
BEE  REN RER  $3R BE® fRE MR BAt %83 ZEE RNF  4eE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000
TEn  fER  TER TER TER TER TER TER TEr TEr  TEn  TEn

2008
Fees B - - - 9 98 9% - - 9% 720 - 1,104
Other emoluments ~ Eftia
Salaiesandother  FERER
benefits &R 120 1,200 1473 - - - 1,080 120 - - 2016 6,009

Bonus (Note) AT (s - 200 200 - - - 150 - - - 33 886
Contrioutions fo RANER
refiement benefits 52

schemes #3 - 60 - - - - 54 - - - 101 25
Totolemoluments ~ ¥£4% 120 1,460 1473 9% 9% 9% 1,284 120 9% 720 2453 8214
2007
Fees = - - - 96 9 9 - - 9% 720 - 1004

Otheremoluments  Eft#4
Solariesand other &%

benefifs HihiEF 120 464 1432 - - - 720 120 - - 2016 4872
Bonus (Note) AAR(IRY - - 400 - - - 160 - - - 62 123
Confripufionsto ~ E{EF

retiement benefits 32

schemes 3 - 20 - - - - 3 - - - 101 153
Totol emoluments #4125 120 484 1832 96 96 96 912 120 96 720 2789 7361
Note: The bonus is based on the performance of individuals and MisT : FEALIRERIA T R ARIBREM

the entity. P e
No director waived any emoluments for the year ended HZE2008F12A31HIEFE - #
31 December 2008. BEERETAHE -

sugEaRAT [/ #2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #,F20084F 12H31H 1 F/E

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

11.

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the 5
highest paid individuals included 3 (2007: 3) Directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in (A) above. The
emoluments of the remaining 2 (2007: 2) individuals are
as follows:

Salaries and other benefits ¥4 & EtigF|
Retirement benefits RINEFIEE
schemes contributions R

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HKD1,000,000 0%1,000,0007 7T
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/%7C% 1,500,000/ 7T

DIVIDENDS

2007 final dividend of HKD0.0220 B4 2007 FHIRAL B

per share &/20.0220% T
(2007: 2006 final dividend of (2007 : 2006 FEARAZ B
HKDO0.0613 per share) paid &H20.0613%7T)

2007 interim dividend of B 2007 FHHARR 2
HKDO0.0328 per share paid k% 0.0328 7T

No interim dividend was paid or declared in respect of 2008.
For the year ended 2008, a final dividend of HKDO0.0100 per
share (2007: HKD0.0220 per share) has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to the approval by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meetfing.
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10. ESHRERESHH (&)

11.

B. EEFHM

HE2008F 12831 BIEFE » &
RAEREFHNSAALTEEIS
EFE (20074 : 34) © HEMHH
BN E3C(A) FEE - H#225 (2007
Fr2F) NERFBIMT

2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TET
2,577 1,655

65 53

2,642 1,708

HENFHETHISBER

2008 2007
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE EEAB
- 2
2 —

g
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
38,369 106,867
- 57,205
38,369 164,072

2008 & I B K SR EARE o BE
20085 L E - EERRKVHRRES

f%0.01007%8 7t (2007 :

% 0.0220 %

) EABARBRRNRRAFAE

&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 Bt iR R K

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z2008% 12431 H 1 F/Z

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. R (EE) &R
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings RAREBRERTE ABEERRE
per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the HENER (BB B TR TSR
Company is based on the following data: g
2008 2007
(LOSS) EARNINGS (HKD) (&518) BF (HT)

(Loss) Profit for the year attributable ENGTEFRERK

to equity holders of the Company S (F518) BFM

for the purposes of basic and diluted AR FIEZRFA A

(loss) earnings per share FEMRFE (B18) B 7 (226,508,000) 94,929,000
NUMBER OF SHARES g E
Weighted average number of EUGTERR

ordinary shares for the (E518) BFIK

purposes of basic TRREER

(loss) earnings per share IRETI9E 1,744,044,773  1,700,558,971
Effect of dilutive potential BAN B E

ordinary shares issuable FHEIFTEATRY

under the Company’s share L imAR B

option scheme BEye - 3,874,676
Weighted average number of ENTEREEER

ordinary shares for the purpose (B18) BT mREER

of diluted (loss) earnings per share METFHE 1,744,044,773  1,704,433,647
No diluted loss per share has been presented for 2008 because ERITEARRRE BT RARITEAE
the exercise of the Company's outstanding share options has A i e i A BB UE - #2008 F I &
an anti-dilutive effect. KESETREBEREY -

gugEaRAT (9  E#H008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12431H 1F F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERR®E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and
freehold improve- Plantand ~ equipment
land menfs  machinery &R Motor
Xi% Buildings HENE BER #ER vehicles Total
B 2 1 B4 # ot k]

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERL ThR T TAnL ThR TER TEn

COSTOR VALUATION RASEE
At 1 January 2007 R007E1R18 5,860 104,667 56942 203,022 2,785 14,482 408,758
Exchange reclignment &R &5 14 434 1,981 8031 518 525 15393
Addifions "E - - 3,598 16,495 3397 496 23986
Surplus arising onrevaluation  EEEENER - 7,634 - - - - 7,634
Disposals 5 - - - (59) (156) (136) 351)
Transfer fo investment giIZRE

properies n% - (2.684) - - - - (2684)
At 31 December 2007 R2007512R318 5874 113941 62,521 207,489 27,544 15,367 452,736
Exchange realignment &R &5 69) 6821 3359 13,550 947 807 25,415
Addifions HE - 14,428 10,295 2191 2,568 1,247 51,329
Deficit arising onrevaluation  EfEE£NEL - (13,808 - - - - (13,808)
Disposdls b - - (23) (1643 259 (2.606) (5,007
At 31 December 2008 R2008512R318 5,805 121,382 75750 262,187 30,806 14,735 510,665
Comprising: BE:
Afcost s - - 75750 262,187 30.806 14,735 383,478
At voluation-2008 18- 20085 5,805 121,382 - - - - 127,187

5,805 121,382 75750 262,187 30806 14,735 510,665

DEPRECIATION AND nEREH

AMORTIZATION
A1 January 2007 R007E1A18 - 587 9739 87,652 12,115 9,434 152,527
Exchange realignment X E3] - 1 1570 3,262 359 365 5,557
Provided for the yeor ERER - 8410 2751 22901 3579 1,664 39,305
Write back on revaluation BRkER - 4997) - - - - (4997)
Eliminated on disposals it R - - - (38) (155) (123) [314)
At 31 December 2007 R2007512R318 - 4001 47,060 13,777 15,898 11,340 192,076
Exchange reclignment ERE7 - 254 249 6,190 635 583 10,154
Provided for the year FERE - 6,948 5078 B4 3741 1166 40,35
Wite back on revaluation EfEARE - (11,203) - - - - (11,203)
Fiminated on disposals it R 3 - - (373) (1,368) (246) [1.470) (3.457)
At 31 December 2008 2008%12R318 - - 54,251 142020 20,028 11,619 207924
CARRYING VALUE ERf
At 31 December 2008 H2008512R318 5,805 121,382 21493 120,167 10,778 3116 282,741
At 31 December 2007 R2007F12A318 5,874 109,940 15,461 113712 11,646 4027 260,660

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED 80 Annual Report 2008



13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #&3R R i =F

For the year ended 31 December 2008

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account their estimated
residual value, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 9%-45%
Plant and machinery 9%-45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%

Motor vehicles 16%-20%

The buildings of Group located in the PRC and Hong Kong
were revalued on 31 December 2008 by Liaoning Huaging
Real Estate Evaluation Co., Ltd (“Liaoning Huaqing”) and
Prudential Surveyors International Limited (“Prudential”)
respectively, independent firms of professional property
valuers, Chartered Surveyors. The freehold land and building
of the Group located in Taiwan was revalued as of the
same date by Chia-Tai Real Estate Appraises (“Chia-Tai"),
an independent firm of property valuer, Chartered Surveyor.
Prudential, Liconing Huaging and Chia-Tai are not connected
with Group. The revaluation of freehold land and buildings
resulted in a deficit of approximately HKD2,605,000 (2007:
a surplus of approximately of HKD12,631,000) which was
charged (2007: credited) directly to the properties revaluation
reserve.

The valuations above adopted a direct comparison
approach with reference to market comparable sales
evidences available in the market.

If the freehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost and carrying amounts less
accumulated depreciation of approximately HKD5,805,000
and HKD109,245,000 (2007: HKD5,874,000 and HKD88,010,000)
respectively.

L2 2008F 1231 H 1FF/&

13. MI% - BERRE (&)

NEWHE BERKBENIAB HRER
SR RABER T IFRUFREN
S

KA FERE T =

BF 2%-5%
EMERE 9%-45%
R R 5% A 9%-45%
RIE - REREE 9%-20%
AE 16%-20%

M2008F 12 A31H » A& B L R F
BLBEENEFO DR ABILEEDE
HERD & AT R BN E BB F AT
HERABD(TEEBES) MAETA
RAR(THETDETEMR - A%E

AEENKAEE L METRE A S
—HITEEYEMGED RS0 E
FIPEGEMEGH([ER])ETE
o BT BEEFBFRNEZRALAEE
WERE - KAXET W RBTNER
B BUE 4l 492,605,000% 7T (2007 © &
#£4912,631,000/& 7T ) © WE BEHZE MK
(2007 : st A) MESERHE

FREEDNERE AT 2 EHISHA
PMENBERRZEMEE

ik AL RE T MERGE - &
S50 Bl LA S2 A AR e BRENHE B R AT
& #9 5,805,000 7% 7T 1 109,245,000 7% 7T
(2007 : 5,874,000% 7T % 88,010,000 %
TO) Rt AR A MK -

gusEarass 1 &m0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 Bt iR R H s

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12431H 1F F/Z

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 January 2007

Additions

Transfer from property,
plant and equipment

Transfer from prepaid
lease payments

Increase in fair value recognized in

the consolidated income
statement

At 31 December 2007

Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries

Decrease in fair value recognized
in the consolidated income
statement

At 31 December 2008

All of the Group's leasehold interests in land and building

RNFEE

7200741 A1H

NE

BHEWE -
RS K sk ke

By EENEE
A

JINGRERi bt
RN AFER
i

2007412331 H
NE
HE M A A
RizaEaE

R AT EE

F20084 12431 H

held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2008 and 2007 were arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out on that date by Prudential. The
valuations were arrived with reference to market comparable
sales evidences available in the market and where
appropriate on the basis of capitalization of net income
provided by management to Prudential.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, a large portfion of the
investment properties were rented out under operating leases.
Details of operating lease arangements are set out in Note 32.
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14, REWEHE

HKD’000
TR

80,000
13,185

2,684

10,376

38,255

144,500
96,422
(96,422)

(32,050)
112,450

AEBREEHEFEREBARERE
ERENMELMREFTOHERES
TIARFEEERGE - AR AR

72008 F [ 2007 F12 A31 H - K& H
BREMENRTEET BB RITIRET
EfHEANEEFE - WAGEDSZE
M5B Y) S P L B & T BT - i
AE TERERERHTIRTNE
FAEFRAGE -

72008 F [ 2007 F 12 A31 B » K&b5H
REPECREEHEHE - KEHE
LHEFF BB BNIFES2 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 Bt iﬁ&ﬂﬁ?

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & Z20084% 12431 H 1I-4F,

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWHE(E)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above LS EYENRRERRS
comprises:
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHET
Land in Hong Kong: R EEE L -
Long-term lease REEE 4,950 5,600
Medium-term lease FHESE 107,500 138,900
112,450 144,500
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. EHHEERIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEENBENHEERERE -
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHER FHET
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: R EBREE T
Held under medium-term lease NHEHERE 29,720 30,504
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: fIAEE ASMNGTEE T
Held under medium-term lease NHEHERE 21,784 18,857
51,504 49,361

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D HT1ERE R

Non-current assets SEmENEE 50,203 48,155
Current assets TMENVE B 1,301 1,206
51,504 49,361

FueEsRas O3  FiHo00
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

B F2008F 12431 HIFF/Z

16. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A

17.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

PROPERTY

At 31 December 2007, a deposit was paid by the Group in
connection with the acquisition of a property in Hong Kong.
The acquisition was completed during the year.

GOODWILL

COST
At 1 January 2007, 31 December
2007 and 2008

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2007 and 2008

Impairment loss recognized
in the year

At 31 December 2008

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

A
20071 A1H ~
20074 [2 200812 431H
RE
#2007 4F }2 200841 A 1H
FNFERD
AR
F20084 12431 H

BREE
F20084 12431 H

2007412431 H

Particulars regarding impairment ftesting on goodwill are

disclosed in Note 18.

84 Annual Report 2008

16. BE-—YXNENTZ

R2007F12A318 - KEBBE AEED
WENDEL NS - ZWECRER
SR o

17. &

HKD'000
T

57,477

57,477
57,477

57,477

B R LB S B B 3 18
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #&3R R i =F

For the year ended 31 December 2008

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in Note 7, less than 10% of the Group's furnover
and contribution to results are confributed by activities other
than the manufacture and sales of footwear products. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in Note
17 is attributed to two cash generating units (“CGUs"). The
carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2008 and
2007 allocated to these units are as follows:

Misto Worldwide Limited
Nice Well Holdings Limited

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are the same and are
summarized below:

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on value in use calculations. That value in use
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period, and a discount rate of 12% (2007: 12%). Both
subsidiaries’ cash flows are extrapolated without application
of any growth rate. Another key assumption for the value
in use calculations is the budgeted gross margin, which
is determined based on the units’ past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

Based on the above value in use calculations, it was
determined that the carrying amount of the goodwill was no
longer recoverable and accordingly, the Group recognized a
full impairment loss of approximately HKD57,477,000 during the
year (2007: Nil).

18.

ELZ2008F 12H31HIFFE

B BV R E R

WAPNFE7 BEAT - ERE MBUE R E HHASD
MEBHARENEXEREEXRER
BTN R 10% « BETRERR - BRH
H1I7OBES M R2ERSELEM (R
SEEBEM]) - 720084 K% 2007 F 12
A31E  #nERUEEMNHERE
B8

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TET

- 55,109

- 2,368

- 57,477

B A Ao 4 T M B M 2 B
HE T BIEERE A - L
m -

REeEESMAREEEDEREER
PEERE - WEAPEENGTEIR
HEREDERNSFUBEENRER
=88 ] AHT H13% 12% (2007 ¢ 12%) &F
Bo-zmENBARNRESREREEY
BAAEFEERER - Z—HUERBE
ENIERIAAEEN  WHERE
UBEXAERBMNEEEHTHERDN
TRHiMEERE

RELROERPEENGTE B
WEEEREEAIETRD - @
b AEEFATRBEIAREBRDY
57,477,000 7 (2007 = &) ©

FueEsRAs S5  #iHo00s
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 2008412431 H 1 F/Z

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
Cost of investment in an R—EERTNRE
associate (unlisted) PRA (3EETH)
Share of post-acquisition losses DU R 1R
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had interests in
the following associate:
Form of Place of
business incorporation/
Entity structure operation
AF] RERB T, i
Global Hero Incorporated British Virgin
Group Limited o Islands
tHHERAER AT RERIES
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly 2kEEHIEEEIE T
controlled entities (Note i) WEARKA (5H)
Shareholders’ loan to a jointly R E T — R
controlled entity (Note ii) =i (Fhi)
Share of post-acquisition net HEEE (B18)
(losses) profits pirlbE
Share of other post-acquisition HE MRS
reserves G
SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED & Annual Report 2008

19. RER—BEQT

2008
HKD’'000
TR

26
(2¢)

2007
HKD'000
T

26
(2¢)

20084 [ 2007 F12 A 31 H » A&

FA MBS QR

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Group

Class of AEBEBFER  Principal

share held 2ETRAE activity

BERGER HENED L FEFEH

Ordinary 33.46% Dormant

s FRE
20. HEEZEFEREERS

2008 2007

HKD’000 HKD'000

FExT FHET

205,553 178,923

62,775 28,062

(61,964) 39,445

(343) 2,765

206,021 249,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bt #& R R K =

For the year ended 31 December 2008

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had interests in the
following jointly confrolled entities:

Place of
Form of incorporation Class of
Jointly business and operation share held
controlled entity structure HlR BA
HEEHER BeRE EEHY R ER
Smart Shine Industries Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary
Limited (“Smart Shine") 3 KBRS Bl
([Smart Shine |)
Grand Wealth Group Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordlinary
Limited ¥ KBRS Lk
Preferred
BER
China Ocean Resources Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary
Limited (“China Ocean”) % KBRS Bl
(IChina Ocean])
Notes:

i During the year ended 31 December 2007, one of the jointly
confrolled entities, China Ocean, was transferred to Smart
Shine in exchange for the equity interest of 18.8% of Full Pearl
International Limited (“Full Pearl”), which was formerly under
Smart Shine. Full Pearl was subsequently classified as available-
for-sales investments.

ii. The shareholders’ loan was unsecured and interest-bearing at
8% per annum, and denominated in USD, being foreign currency
of the Group entity.

iii. The preferred shares shall have the same right and privileges to
income as the ordinary shares in the proportion of 99:1.

ELZ2008F 12H31HIFF/E

20. #HEEHIERERS (F)

B"2008¢&20075F A318  K&E
FrA LT HARZES B

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital

indirectly held

by the Group

KEEBEN

ERTRA Principal business activities

HENE TERETEH

2008 2007

50% 50% Investment holding
and footwear trading

50% (note iii) 50% Investment holding and
( i) men's apparel marketing
18% (note iii) 18% and trading
( if3iii) REZRRFLRELSHEHNES

50% 50% Investment holding and
licensing of trade mark
and footwear trading

REALR  BERERERES
i3

i HZE2007F12A31BILFE - —HFA
{2 #]E 2 China Ocean 2 = Smart
Shine MM ERBIRARLAR ([E®
EIBR ) 18.8% A+ - 2 miB A
ZHESmart Shine A - BREERKE
BHRERAHEERSE -

ii. BRERYEEIR - FHEB8% - I
AR (REEBBAINE) FHE -

il BRI 9 ML BB R L B E
BEE N ZHPCES s

FueEsRAs 87 Fi#H008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #,F20084F 12H31H 1 F/E
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20. HEEZEHEEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are UM HARESERARIEAER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 8 WERBKEERER -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency (i.e. HKD RIER - NEBLIINE (BB TRAR
and Renminbi (“RMB”)) denominated amount due from/to AR SBENREI B LRIE
jointly controlled entities at the reporting date are as follows: FIERRENEEENT
Amounts due from Amounts due to
W A
2008 2007 2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FExT FAT FExT FExT
HKD BT = 537 393 2,876
RMB AR 8,208 — 17,045 —
The summarized financial information in respect of the Group's AN 52 B A HE [ 22 ) B A Y B A 2 LA BE
attributable interest in its jointly controlled entities which are FEANRNSABERBR T

accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

2008 2007

HKD’000 HKD'000

FERT FHET

Current assets MENEE 87,328 189,212
Non-current assets EMBEE 257,352 210,866
Current liabilities FENE (74,485) (122,222)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (126,949) (56,723)
Income WA 70,176 72,758
Expenses 53 (171,585) (135,017)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & 220084 12431H 1 F/Z
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AHEERE
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FExT FET
Listed investments: EHRE -
- Equity securities listed in -REB LT

Hong Kong IRAFE FH 22 19

- Equity securities listed outside — BB T
Hong Kong RAFE FH 775 2,493

- Debentures listed outside
Hong Kong with fixed interest
ranging from 7.200% to 8.375%

(EIER RS

and maturity dates on 2013%3H28H -
28 March 2013, 15 April 2013, 2013F4A158
15 June 2013 and 2013F6A15H K
15 December 2049 2049 12H15H
Unlisted equity securities IELETRAES

Total ke

As at 31 December 2008, all listed investments were stated at
fair value. Fair values were determined by reference to market
bid prices quoted in relevant stock exchanges.

The unlisted equity securities above is the Group's investment
in Full Pearl, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, whose subsidiary is engaged in retailing business in
the PRC. The investment represents a shareholding of 18.8% in
the ordinary shares of Full Pearl and is measured at cost less
impairment at each balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

- REBAIMER EHHES

7.200%%8.375% * HEIHAR &

35,089 2,093
35,886 4,605
18,480 18,480
54,366 23,085

2008412331 H » FiE EMREH A
RFBEEEZY - 2TVEED2ERBR
ZFNERREMETE -

L ETRABEDAAEEREE
BRHKRE  EA—HREBELHS
M ZE AR - E A AR B
ELEXL - RREEFEFELEERE
BAR18.8% R - WHHNBEAE RKA
HRREMTE - BRI EATEE
HEPBEAE HEFRAREZENAT
BEREREDAE -

guzmsras 89  #moo0s
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #(E2008F 12H31H 1 F/&

22. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS 22. FBUER

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31 December 2007, the Group held two bank structured
deposits denominated in USD, the major terms of the
structured deposits were as follows:

Principal amount (USD) Maturity date
& (£7x) A
(dd.mm.yyyy)
(B.A.9%)
5,000,000 17.05.2009
3,000,000 15.12.2009

The structured deposits were a hybrid instrument containing
a debt host confract and embedded derivative insfruments
in which the interest income was defermined based on the
changes in LIBOR. The structured deposits also contained an
early redemption option by the issuer. As such, the hybrid
insfrument was designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of the USD5,000,000 structured deposit was
determined based on a professional valuation carried out by
an independent valuer using discounted cash flow method
based on applicable interest rate obtained from the market at
the balance sheet date.

The USD3,000,000 structured deposit was measured at fair
value based on the valuation provided by the banks.

The issuer had the right fo call these structured deposits at
principal amount plus accrued interest at any time before the
maturity dates. The structured deposits were early redeemed
in full during the year.
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R2007F12A31 8 AEEFHF 2B
ENHENSEMERITER  £EMERE
REEZEFAT -

Applicable Interest rate
BRARE

7.56% per annum for the first year
and thereafter, the preceding
inferest rate plus 2% to 5% per
annum minus 6 months LIBOR

BFEFNERAR7.56%  HEFF%E
B AT R R N F F R 2% 2 5% 15
BOIE A mEIRITRIEF S

8.38% per annum for the first half year
and thereafter, the maximum of
1.5% and the preceding
inferest rate plus 2% to 6% per
annum minus 6 months LIBOR
B FFHER8.38%  HIBFF
KRR .5% K BT 2= AN 2 2% 2 6%
SROMEARBRITRAERE - UBRSERE

IhEBEERBEAMETA  BFE—A
BEBEIRANEBRAATETAR MR
WA RBBRITRERENEEME
E o REBUTERITMEEITANRESR
BErEERE - At EAATATD
EEEBBRRERARNTFEEANRE -

5,000,000 X TAEBIERFRO A FEETD
ER—BumBMnERtE  waE
BB ERANEAR S R TEAMAE

3,000,000 = T A& B IEF IR IRTTIRH A
HERAFEESE -

BETARERIYEAEARREZRAS
MEFNEBMOZEEBIETR - &8
HEFENFABERTED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 Bt iR R K

For the year ended 31 December 2008

INVENTORIES

Raw materials AR
Work in progress EEm
Finished goods B

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables E SRR

Less: allowance for doubtful debts  F0a, © REREE

Other receivables, prepayment HAb AR
and deposits TN FRERE®

Total rade and other receivables & 5 & H el 8R 7k 4858

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to
90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts af the
reporting date:

0 to 30 days 0ZE30k
31 to 60 days 31E60K
61 to 90 days 61E90K
Over 90 days #90K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scores attributed fo customers are reviewed twice
a year. 80% of the tfrade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have the best credit score attributable under the
external credit scoring system used by the Group.

B F20084 129315 1 /2

23. #E

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
74,614 82,253
68,369 59,308
126,165 136,158
269,148 277,719

24. EZ R EMEWERT
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
320,160 278,209
(6,220) (9,070)
313,940 269,139
145,121 89,178
459,061 358,317

AEBREESEPREF/HIOHE
BAENTFHEER - RREA - B5
FEU BRI R BR B RO BR R D AT I TS

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TR
242,559 154,927
58,416 71,142
3,807 22,393
9,158 20,677
313,940 269,139

REZMBERERN - ARBEERM—
B EESRRGUBEZERTSHE
2H UEETREFPHEERRE &P
MEEREDBETFET2RE
BAKBEMRANBILEEDBRERE
B BAERSEESBNER  HEM
B 5 & W IR 5 ) 80% 19 3 8 18 H oK I AR
E

guzmsras O1 =m0



SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group's tfrade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HKD?,158,000 (2007: HKD20,677,000) which were past due but
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 120 days (2007: 120 days).

Ageing of frade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

Over 90 days #90K

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year — FE ¥4 &
Impairment losses recognized B R ERARTERY
on receivables REEE
Impairment losses reversed REER R
Balance at end of the year FRAER

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of the
Group's frade and other receivables that were denominated
in a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12431H 1F F/Z

B 5 REMEVRERR (&)

FEENE S RUERERBIEREE
{B#99,158,000 % 7T (2007 : 20,677,000
BT RMIR - RERFRERS
MRS E L \IAFHREEE - AEEH
BELEERBEEAERR - HLEE
Y BR SR e T BR R 43 120K (2007 ¢ 120
R) e

I SR 0 180 B 5 e WO SR 0 R R

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHT
9,158 20,677
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
9,070 25,000
1,450 50
(4,300) (15,980)
6,220 9,070
REEH AEEUEBESEEEEYEE
BEEBINNERE (BB L) GENESRE
M EKFIERREENT ¢
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET
9,715 9,598
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #t 220084 12431 H 1FF/E

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS W {EHEH

AT MARKET VALUE INCLUDE: BIEEBERERIE
Listed equity securities in REBE LR
Hong Kong IR A %

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances carried interest at prevailing market rates
ranging from 0.36% to 1.15% (2007: 0.72% to 2.25%) during the
year. The fime deposits carried fixed interest rates ranging from
0.05% to 2.99% (2007: 3.07% to 5.16%).

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of the
Group's bank balances and cash that were denominated in
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency (i.e.
USD) of the relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT

25

26.

KEEERE
2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TET
4,055 428
RITEHRREE

FRROTOERRRITHE N X
T F0.36%Z=1.15% 1% (2007 : 0.72%%
2.25%)5t B o EHIFRUREEFIE0.05%
£2.99% 1% (2007 : 3.07% % 5.16%) &
B o

REER > AEBENEBEEEEREIE
B (ANXT) LN EE (BN T) 5HE
MIRTTAESR LR S MEREENT ¢

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET TET
5,448 76,377

guzmsras O3  #Ho00
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

A ZE2008F 12731 H 1FF/Z

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Other payables, temporary
receipt and accruals

BHREMRR
HARERTARR -
B B Ok I JE R T AR AR

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

balance sheet date:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

0Z30K
31E260K
61E90 K
90K

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
tfo ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

fimeframe.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of the
Group's frade and other payables that were denominated in
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency (i.e.
USD) of the relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD

BT
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27. EZREAMEMNIRR

THE GROUP
REE

2008 2007
HKD’'000 HKD'000
TR T
237,381 255,618
157,646 165,423
395,027 421,041

REEH B RNERNERERD T
T

2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TR
84,484 113,830
83,394 85,577
30,457 25,029
39,046 31,182
237,381 255,618

BENTHEEHRIOX  AEESH
TE 765 R\ B TR ISR DA R R P B B AN B
RN EERRAEE

NHEER  AEEUEREEEEND)
BEEH (BNETT) AN E ™ (BB L) &f
ENES REMEMRFOREERT -

R

2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT TR
19,714 37,706
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. ELEB
The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities AEFECHANETEZEEERNFAGERE
and assets recognized by the Group and movements thereon E NMEERNAFENUTFENE
during the current and prior years: BRI E
Undistributed
eaming
of PRC's
subsidiaries
Revaluation ~ Accelerated ~ Allowance from Unredlized
of tax  forbadand  January, 2008 profit on Tax
buildings ~ depreciation doubfful debts ~ E2008%17 inventories losses
g7 i3 REE  ETENE IR iR Total
EffEE RERE BE DRAIMER  WERER iz | g
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TEn Tén Tn TEn Tén Tn Tén
At T Jonuory 2007 H007E1 A18 1,565 715 (3561) - (146) (10,399) (5,381)
Charge (credif) foincome WA AV - 7844 242 - (16 520 10,624
Charge foequity for the year — EREEES R 1,857 - - - - - 1,857
At31 December 2007 H007E 128318 340 15,003 (1139) - (38) 9.879) 7,099
Effectof changesinfoxrate  BEE&HE
(Credit) charge fo income NEEELON - (857) 65 - 18 565 209)
Effect of changes infaxrates  HEE&HZE
charge fo equity RERTRR 253) - - - - - 253)
(Credit) charge fo income GIAMHERA - (8,097) 5 1,347 7l - (6,157)
Credit to equity for the yeor EE AR (640) - - - - - (640)
At31 December 2008 HO0BE12831R 2509 4,049 (552) 1347 (219) [9314) (160)

A deferred tax of approximately HKD1,347,000 has been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the undistributed profits earned by the Group's PRC
subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2008 attributable to the
Group under the New Law that are subject to withholding tax
upon the distribution of such profits to the shareholders outside
the PRC.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HKD161,627,000 (2007: HKD92,481,000)
available to offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognized in respect of such losses to the extent
of approximately HKD56,446,000 (2007: HKD56,448,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HKD105,181,000
(2007: HKD36,033,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely except for those arising from the PRC which may
be carried forward for 5 years.

RIBEHBOE  REBERAEE ST
M AR E 200841 A 1 HEEREUEY KR
M MR R A B IS IR IR BOR T TR R B
471,347,000 7T - 2 ZEF R R E
LASIN [ % R4 Hh 0 IR B ZR AR TR AR

M2008F 12831 H  XEBEBERHHA
¢ IH & 18 £9161,627,0007% st (2007 :
92,481,0008 70) A ISR AR ) © Bt
Sy ERZFEERBBEERBEELD
56,446,000 7 7T (2007 : 56,448,000 %
JT) c MR AIEEIR RN BB - I
LRI ER R AR IS B 1R 49 105,181,000
7 7T (2007 = 36,033,000 % T ) ## R IE
RMEEE - PTEMIABRAER LS
B EREThEY A EE S FORAER
ARSI o

gugmaras 95  =mo0s
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28. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

29.

SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized:

At 1 January 2007 and 31
December 2008,
at HKDO.25 each

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2007 at
HKDO0.25 each

Exercise of share options

At 31 December 2007
and 2008, at HKDO0.25 each

BRERBEE
ERERB AR

SEERA

20071 ATE &
20085 12H31H -
FREEC.25E T

BEBEITRBRER

2007F1 A1H - 8
H180.25/8 7T

1T E

20074 ] 2008124318 -
BIREEO.25/ T
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29.

IEERE (&
THBREME BERBEHS TN
T
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FExT AT
(10,085) (11,326)
9,925 18,425
(160) 7,099
g 4
Number of shares Amount
ik 2 §E] &8
HKD'000
AT
8,000,000,000 2,000,000
1,664,704,773 416,176
79,340,000 19,835
1,744,044,773 436,011




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #&3R R i =T

For the year ended 31 December 2008

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 22 October 2001 (*2001 Scheme"), the
Company operates the 2001 Scheme for the purpose of
providing eligible participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary inferests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole. All Directors, full-time employees
and any other persons who, at the sole discretion of the Board,
have confributed or will confribute to the Group are eligible to
participate in the 2001 Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2001 Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not exceed
10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2001 Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to fime.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and fo be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under the
2001 Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

30.

{Z20084F 12431 H 1FF/E

BRESTE

REA R FF 2001410 A 22 B ERAH
BRI ([2001 518 )) - AREERA
2001 GBS ARG TRARSEE
MEARRWERZED  UHB2EER
IAARRRREBRRNBEN D REKE
BORSARBAREBRMHWOEE - FE
EF 2REEVRESFENERREY
Ee e S AR EE R B E R E A
AEHFAERZE2001 518 -

B 1742 2001 Bl E(AT MR R EE
TR 40 B B8 AR AT B0 T JE X A P B B AR
& AT AR B 1T MY AR 10 AR 8RS T RE SRR AR
NEPRERAE AE BTG 10% ©

RS IR - ANAR AT BEEHTIL10%
BOPRBE - MEHZ L ST W R BT A R
17 BB T B S M AN R R R IR SR L
EHDETHRMNNI10% -

BB 47 {8 P & #22001 51 &l 3k fE ] H i 2%
X EBR A 0 B B R AT B 1 4R T 1 R AT
{52 F) B BECHE T ) BE 31T AU AN A Rl AL 1D 4R
o BAEMBEAARR AR HITR
178 30% °

BRIE AR RN BRCR LA - RER1218 A
iR - AR A RTER 2001 5B SAEf
HMARBRMHBEREFE TR T =
SEENBRE(BEETERHRITE
ERERLRE) - BT R T EITHRND
BB A ATHBRARB D EITRMO%

gugmamras Q7  =Ho08
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the fime of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
opftions. At the time of grant of the options, the Company may
specify a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 14 days from the date on which the
letter containing the offer is delivered fo that participant and
the amount payable on acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

The subscriptfion price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (ii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of grant. The subscription
price will be established by the Board at the tfime the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the 2001 Scheme after
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the 2001
Scheme.
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30. fBIRAERTE ()

BRESRTENHBEHARFER
HEBIETE - ILHIRMARKHERE
EHRIOFAER - R BRER
AAmA g AERENREREH
R FHREREDENTE ARE
HERENETRE  2REAREE
BRRERZN KN FTERALI4RA
R R MERERLERERSR
H R TR IE 3 1.0078 7T

AR EE T 150 FE AR T 75 B AT RO B AD RR
BEBTSER(UBSERE) (i) N K
HEBEE B8RP A #1TH
WERNRDRBMDETHE (i) REE
X R AT Y 5 (8 T VBRI BB 32 P
FHBETHRERNADF RN TR
BB ¢ (i) NREBREE AR QK
MEOEE REERHEFIRNEIR
HBRET2EREE QT

MREREN 2001 EHEIREET 10BF HIZ - B
FERCRE R 122001 AT &M R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #&3R R i =T

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # Z20084 12431 H 1 F/Z

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000
share options fo eligible partficipants at an exercise price
of HKD1.032 pursuant fo the 2001 Scheme. The following
table discloses the details of the options held by directors,
employees and a consultant and movements in such holding
during the year ended 31 December 2008:

Name

&8

Category I:
Directors

Category II:

Employees

Category lII:

Consultant

Yl
Ex

BRI
&8

hm
L

Date of grant
RHAH

(dd.mm.yyyy)
(B.R.%)

02.08.2006

02.08.2006

02.08.2006

Exercisable period
TEER

(dd.mm.yyyy)
(8.5.%)

01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009

01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009

01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009

The consultant rendered consultancy service with regard to
the setting up and management of PRC operations of the
Group. The Group granted share options to him for recognizing
his service similar to those rendered by other employees.

30. BBRAERTE (&)

M2006F8A2H + A A AR #2001
&I A8 M 1T B1.0328 T &K H
166,050,000 13 BB 1 T & B2 T4 -
TRBEENRBE2008F 12831 B ILF
B -EB8% EER—FZEMMAFNER

RN HEE)
Number of share options
BREYE
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise  at1.1.2008 during at 31.12.2008
price 20085 the year 200845
per share 1A1H RER 12A31H
BROTRE e RATHE P e RATHE
(HKD)
(&)
1.032 43,600,000 - 43,600,000

1.032 40,610,000  (6,700,000) 33,910,000

1.032 1,000,000 - 1,000,000

85,210,000  (6,700,000) 78,510,000

ZEEARIREEBAREER D E S
BREBEBRYE AEERERLBR
TR RERFENREEEMERRE -

guemsras 90  #imoo0s
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. IBRRAESTEI(E)
The following table discloses the details of the 2001 Scheme TREBEEHZ2007F12A31 B IEFERH
held by the Directors, employees and a consultant and BE  EBNR—RERAEAE 200152
movements in such holdings during the year ended 31 R R EEE)
December 2007:
Number of share options
BREYE

Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed  Oufstanding
Exercise ot 1.1.2007 during during at 31.12.2007
pice  H2007F theyear  theyear 200745

Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1718 RER RER 124318
4 it A I ER BRAEE BRI 116 F HARITE
(dd.mm.yyyy) (dd.mm.yyyy) (HKD)
(A.5.%) (B.A.%) (A7)

Category Al

Directors g% 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1032 97,600,000  (54,000,000) - 43,600,000
Categoryll: 8l
Employees g 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1032 67,450,000 (25,340,000)  (1,500,000) 40,610,000
Categoryll: Rl
Consultant ] 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000

166,050,000 (79,340,000] (1,500,000  85.210,000

sympHoNY HOLDINGS LIMITED ] Q) Annual Report 2008
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 29 October 2008, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of a subsidiary, Bright Boom Holdings Limited
(“Bright Boom”), an investment holding company. Bright Boom
owned the entire issued share capital in Keenson Asia Limited
("Keenson"”), which was principally engaged in property
holding. The net assets of Bright Boom together with Keenson
af the date of disposal were as follows:

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF BEHEEESREAE
Investment properties wEME
Other receivables EAbFEULER K
Other payables H A FETERFR
Gain on disposal e s
Total consideration BRE
Satisfied by: AT AR
Cash Re
Deferred consideration (Note i) FERE (FF)
Share consideration (Note ii) BHRE (GFi)
Cash inflow arising from disposal: HEELENRESRE
Cash consideration ReRE
Notes:

The deferred consideration included in other receivables will be
settled by cash by the purchaser on or before 30 April 2009.

ii. The share consideration included in held-for-trading investments
represents 4,000,000 shares of Bel Global Resources Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Exchange, at HKD1.25 per
share at the acquisition date.

31.

B2 F

MR2008F 10298 » ARRIHE—=E
B EREERRAI I E A F]Bright Boom
Holdings Limited ([Bright Boom )y
2B EITHA - Bright Boom#Fa &
MEMBRAR(TRH ] N2 BEET
B EFMEEREWERE - Bright

Bo
T

omEEMNIEE RN EEFEN

29 October
2008
20084
10H8298
HKD'000
FHET

96,422
1,030
(1,038)

96,414
13,586

110,000

96,000
9,000
5,000

110,000

96,000

FIAE R EE RO ECKERRE S
FE2009F 4 308 2 BIAR & S+ -

AR ERETRENBRN K ERENEE
H #34,000,000 % B & RILERIZERE
AR (RER R ETRRR]) A -
BEREE1.2587T

guemsras 101 =m0
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group made the following minimum lease payments

during the year as follows:

Operating lease rentals in respect of: G#A THE RKEHERS -

Minimum lease payments: SEBEFE
- plants —BE
— retail shops —TEEH
Contingent rentals BEAYiEkA

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments for plants and retail shops
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:

ﬁ,,_k

B ER M

. REHERIE
REEBREAA

REENFAELEU TREEETE

2008 2007
HKD’'000 HKD'000
TR TETT
32,086 28,682
1,086 19
4,053 314
37,225 29,015

REER  AEEAEXNHEEEAT
AIBUEMKREHENRE KT EEHN
ARREEEFE - HEH AT
T

Within one year BFA
In the second to fifth yearinclusive XEZFERE (BIEEEMRE)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its plants and retail shops. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms of 1 fo 5 years.

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contfingent rents payable in respect of
certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rents are calculated with reference to the relevant
retail shops’ furnover using pre-deftermined formulae. It is
not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such
contingent rent payable.

sympHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 ()2 Annual Report 2008

2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TR
38,447 18,207
71,897 17,880
110,344 36,087

KEMEFADERAEEEMNEE TR
ERTZEEHOES - HOKLHBEER]
ES5FTE o

PR EAREEREEAES BT
AEBEHENE TEERHNENHA
He - —RME ZFLRBEEHESE
HETERHNEXAEABELEEEN
BAE  FLEAENEREIARS
B & FRIL AT ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HKD4,147,000 (2007: HKD2,206,000). All of the
Group's investment properties are held for rental purposes.
The investment properties held for rental purposes have
committed tenants for the next years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year REF
In the second to fifth REFEEESF
year inclusive (BIEERMF)

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2008, capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to approximately HKD958,000 (2007 acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties:
HKD82,830,000).

32.

33.

HZ2008412H31H 1

F e
4=

RETHERE ()

FEBMBHBAA

RERN - FEMEREABRADLDS
4,147,000/ 7t (2007 : 2,206,0007%
TT) e ARBENMBEREMETIFEEE
R - RARREF - HIFRERENE
EMECHINHEP -

REZR  NEERMBEFIZARKRKE
HERBALHMT

2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TR
4,893 1,701
8,438 -
13,331 1,701

BAREE

7200812 331 H - BEAIAERRN R
SHBREABRBONBEDE  BEL
A E A 40 %8 958,000,778 7T (2007
FHEWE BERREBARKREDE
82,830,000 L) °
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34.

AL Z2008F 1231 H 1FF/E

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the confrol of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% or HKD1,000 in maximum of relevant payroll
costs to the MPF Scheme, which conftribution is matched by
employees.

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The retirement scheme confributions,
which are based on a cerfain percentage of the salaries
of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period to which they
relate and represent the amount of confributions payable by
these subsidiaries to the scheme.

The Group also participates in defined conftribution retirement
schemes organized by the relevant local government
authorifies in other jurisdictions where the Group operates.
Certain employees of the Group eligible for participating in
the retirement schemes are entitled to retirement benefits from
the schemes. The Group is required to make conftributions to
the refirement schemes up to fime of retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resigned before
their retirements, at a percentage that is specified by the local
governments.
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 35. BEALHE
(A)  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (n) BEALRS
During the year, the Group entered into the following RER -« S HEH R 6] F 8
fransactions with its jointly controlled entities: HEITUATRS -
NATURE OF TRANSACTIONS R5M4E 2008 2007
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHEx FHET
Sales HE 100,984 51,163
Advertising charge BEEA - (1.964)
Purchase of property, BEWZE - BE K&
plant and equipment - (67)
Interest income FEHA 3,463 538
Management fee income ERBWA 2,090 772
Royalty fee charge HHREERE (803) (1,609)
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (B) IE%EAE%M
The remuneration of the Directors and other members of RERN BEEREMTIEERAR
key management during the year was as follows: BT
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHExT FHET
Short-term benefits EHIEA 14,370 11,951
Post-employment benefits RILERRER 456 325
14,826 12,276
The remuneration of the Directors and the key EERFTEEBABNFMIHE
executives is determined by the Directors having regard FRERRERTISBEMETE -

to the performance of the individuals and market trends.
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36. SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET OF THE 36 KRFEEEBRBE
COMPANY
The following is the summarized balance sheet of the NAEIR2008F 12 A31 HHWEEAER
Company as at 31 December 2008: BMENT :
2008 2007
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx FExT
Investments in subsidiaries R EA R IEE 988 988
Other receivables HAbEWERR 721 2,147
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B~ RIZkIE 1,228,125 583,294
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 97,418 374,859
1,327,252 961,288
Other payables HAb TR 556 409
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A RFE 377,751 22,535
378,307 22,944
948,945 938,344
Capital and reserves AR K i
Share capital &N 436,011 436,011
Reserves (Note) i GE) 512,934 502,333
948,945 938,344
Note: G
RESERVES @&
Share
options
Share  Conftributed reserve Retained
premium surplus A AR profits Total
f& 1w (8 EHER i BIFim A wer
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FAT FAT FATT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2007 H2007F1A1H 288,308 63,561 29,900 137,703 519,472
Profit for the year FE A - - - 84,890 84,890
Dividends paid BfRE - - - (164,072) (164,072)
Exercises of share options TR AR 76,330 - (14,557) 270 62,043
At 31 December 2007 20074 12A831H 364,638 63,561 15,343 58,791 502,333
Profit for the year FREEF - - - 48,970 48,970
Dividends paid RS - - - (38,369) (38,369)
Lapse of share options BB R - - (1,206) 1,206 -
At 31 December 2008 7R2008F 12831 H 364,638 63,561 14,137 70,598 512,934
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #;Z2008% 12431 H 1FF/E

SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for
the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Group has the following subsequent events:

1. On 30 January 2009, Team China Infernational Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
info a joint venture agreement with Toyota Tsusho
Corporation for the establishment of a joint venture
company relating fo the distribution and retailing in the
Greater China region of well-known brands of apparels
mainly originated from Japan, Europe and the United
States of America. The Group's total contribution to the
joint venture company would amount to HKD42,000,000;

2. On 23 January 2009, Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald (“Mr.
Li"), former chairman and executive Director, tfendered
his resignation. At its own discretion, the Board resolved
to make a payment of HKD12.8 million to Mr. Li at the
Group's discretion subsequent to his resignation.

36.

37.

ARAEEREREE (&)

ARBNEH BB BB ONER
AR H A FEE - BBRI1995F2A
Y HEERBEER - ARF EUKHEZH
BRRMEITORD ZEE

REBRREMH
AEEETHREE%RESR

1. M20094F 1 A308  ARRZEMH
B A& Team China International
Limited EE HBEIR KN 245
AERNAHE - UKL EE QR
BEEAPEESEETELER
B A - BOMNREE & ME DR
HoAEBMAEARIANTELEE
# & 42,000,000 % 7T

2. 20094 1 A23H - Al fE £ 3
HOTESTEBEE(FEE]D
2 -EFERNERE A5H
MEEEBEREAFTEEXN
12,800,000 % 7T °
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEMBARAEH

#2008 4 22007 12 A 31 H - AR F
WEEMEBRRFBFNT

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Proportion of

nominal value
Place of Paid up of issued/
incorporation/ issued/ registered
registration registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
R BRf/ KARREN Principal
Subsidiaries ERR BHER BRfT/ER activities
HWEAR T BRRA WREEELE TEED
2008 2007
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HE B B i
Canray Int"I Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
FRRAHES TER = trading
§EES
Cashmaster Profits Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
FRRAHES TER = trading
§EES
Chi Yuen Developments Brifish Virgin Islands/ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
Limited PRC TER = manufacturing
ERERBRAT RERAHES/ ERRE
i
Cosmo Group Holdings Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary 100% - 100% - Investment
Limited RBERIES UsD10,000 holding
LR REHR
10,000%
Continuance Enterprises Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
Limited FRRAHES TER = trading
§EES
Panyu Xingtaiy PRC Registered capital - 92.78% - 92.78%  Footwear
ERAR (Co-operative RMB48,260,876 manufacturing
joint venture) RS
i HMER
(Aetg) 68,260,876 ¢
AR
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries
WBAF

Fuging Grand Galatica
VN

Holey Trading Limited
BEEHERLA

Liang Shing Industries
Limited
REEEERAT

Liang Shing Industries
(HK) Limited
REEX(EH)ARAA

Lucky Port Trading
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
s/
Bk
e

PRC
(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
HE
(SEBERE)

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
B&h/
BER
BERA

Registered capital

USD700,000
AR
700,000% 7t

Ordinary HKD2
LEk2En

Ordinary
HKD72,000
Non-voting

deferred (Note)

HKD1,428,000
Lak
72,000% 7
RERFHEHN
ERR ()
1,428,000 7T

Ordinary
HKD10,000

i
10,000%7T

Ordinary USD2
Efih Ve

Directly Indirectly Directly
HE Gf: B% i

A2 20084F 12 H31H 1

38. FEMBARAER (&)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued/
registered
capital held
by the Company
RAAREN
BRT/ER
HREAELE
2008 2007
Indirectly

- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%

Principal
activities
TEEH

Footwear
manufacturing

ERRE

Footwear
frading
HEES

Provision of
management
services

R ER RS

Footwear
marketing and
frading

HEEHRED

Footwear
marketing and
frading

HEEHRED
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEMBARAEHR (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
nominal value
Place of Paid up of issued/
incorporation/ issued/ registered
registration registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
s/ BRI/ NGl Principal
Subsidiaries Bk BER BRT/ER activities
HWEAR oEHY BERE HREEELE TEED
2008 2007
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
¢4 B E% i
Misto Worldwide Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment
HERIHE ERRET holding
RARR
Nice Well British Virgin Islands Ordinary - 80% - 80%  Footwear
RBRAES USD50,000 trading
50,000%T
Power Plus Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment
HERIHE ERRET holding
RARR
Stateway Enterprises British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
Limited RBRAES LBk Er Trading
AREEARAR ERES
Symphony Resources Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Trading of
Limited BB LRk 2AT footwear,
HEERERLA apparel,
swimming
wear and
accessories
TKIRE R
R85
Takson Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Footwear
SHERAR BB HKD10,000 purchasing
LEk EERE
10,000 7T
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(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries
WBAF

Uprise Group Limited
EREERRAT

Zenith Billion Trading
Limited
BEZHARAF

Zhongshan Jingmei

PILREE

Zhongshan Huali
LEF|

Stateway Vietnam Footwear
Co. Ltd.
e (ME) 2EBRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
s/
Bk
e

British Virgin Islands
EBRNES

Hong Kong
B

PRC
(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
HE
(SEBERE)

PRC
(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
HE
(SEBERE)

Vietnam
(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
il
(SEBERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
B&h/
BER
BERA

Directly

Ordinary
USD50,000

il
50,0007t

Ordinary HKD2
LEk2En

Registered capital
USD21,500,000

HiTER
21,500,000 7T

Registered capital
USD2,500,000

HiTER
2,500,000%7T

Registered capital
VND119,989,391,000

HiTER
119,989,391,000
WA

Proportion of

Indirectly

nominal value
of issued/
registered
capital held
by the Company
NG
BRT/ER
HREAELE
2007
Directly  Indirectly
R B% i
80% - 80%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

HZ20084 12531 H 1F F/&Z

38. FTEMBRAAER (&

Principal
activities
TEEH

Footwear
manufacturing
BERE

Footwear
frading
HEES

Footwear
manufacturing
BERE

Footwear
manufacturing
BERE

Footwear
manufacturing
BRERE
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

38. FEMBARER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
nominal value
Place of Paid up of issued/
incorporation/ issued/ registered
registration registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
Rilave BRI/ NGl Principal
Subsidiaries Bk BRR BRT/ER activities
HWEAR TEny BLRE HREEELE FTEED
2008 2007
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HE GE3 Bk i
HEREROERAT PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Trading, retailing
(Wholly foreign RMB35,728,529 and distribution
owned enterprise) HRER of apparel,
i 35,728,529 ¢ swimming
(IEEELE) ARHE wear and
accessories
8B R
KR R
RRtg5 28
BAH

Note: The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not enfitled
to vote, are not entitled to any dividend and are, on a winding-
up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the Company, to a
return of the capital after a total sum of HKD100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the

Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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RESULTS

Revenue

Profit (Loss) before tax

Taxation
Profit (Loss) for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the
Company

Minority interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity aftributable
to equity holders
of the Company

Minority interests

Butan 2R (E51R)

IR
FREN (E8)
1S
AAFESFBA

DERRER

BEENEIE

BEERE
BERE

/NS
BAEERA A
et

DB R

Financial S ummary B EHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831HL

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FHET
1,447,851 1,852,511 1,861,604 1,849,207 2,050,584
187,582 257,635 222,172 116,252 (231,245)
(16,807) (21,888) (7.,444) (18,216) 1,554
170,775 235,747 214,728 98,036 (229,691)
163,760 215,950 207,287 94,929 (226,508)
7,015 19,797 7,441 3,107 (3,183)
170,775 235,747 214,728 98,036 (229,691)
As at 31 December
M12831H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FAT FHT FAT FAT FHET
1,411,275 1,915,451 2,023,750 2,057,715 1,792,803
(470,073) (480,290) (505,171) (501,677) (488,599)
941,202 1,435,161 1,518,579 1,556,038 1,304,204
914,729 1,404,891 1,480,868 1,520,668 1,271,373
26,473 30,270 37,711 35,370 32,831
941,202 1,435,161 1,518,579 1,556,038 1,304,204
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(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Particulars of Major Properties = E¥) £ & %!

(A) 2ERWE - BERRENY

EQUIPMENT E 3
Effective
Gross floor % held
Name/location Lease term area Use BREE
&8/ HED AR A& [54:4
(sq.ft.) (%)
(FFR)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 B% Medium 20,090 Commercial 100
on the 10/F of Island A 1 Ef [SES
Place Tower, Island Place, HEES5105%
No. 510 King's Road, BEANE
North Point, 101
Hong Kong 1210578
Unit 16-3, Lane 73, FEREAE Long 43,446 Industrial land 100
Rau Ping Road, EME & TERAM
Tsyh Torng, FIRES
Yun Lin Hsien, BB
Taiwan, R.O.C. 7381623
Land and factory complex FEARLMNE Medium 2,019,511 Factory and 100
at Zhangjiabian Village, BEREF LT i Ef Staff quarters
Huoju Development Zone, NIEFREE IKEkEBIES
Zhangshan City, Guangdong RKig
Province, the People’s T RIBE
Republic of China
Unit 3, Flat 113 to 114, FEARERE Medium 11,214 Commercial 100
123 to 124, No. 21-1, BT R e
Wenyi Road Shenhe District, R SR
Shenyang 21-155—/E1-1-3
1-1-45 —[E1-2-3»
1-2-4E &R
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Particulars of Major Properties T E¥)E &R

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (B) 7HARENMENYZE

Effective
Gross floor % held
Name/location Lease term area Use BREE
E-98: 11 HES HEE =} th &
(sq.ft.) (%)
(FHR)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the BB Medium 20,090 Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, pig= HEf e
No. 510 King's Road, REES5105%
North Point, BB AE3NE
Hong Kong 121055 EfL
Flat E on 8/F, B Medium 975 Residential 100
One Island Place, itA HEf F=
No. 51 Tanner Road, F2E515%
North Point, VBN R
Hong Kong BIZEE
Flat G on 18/F, BB Medium 1,013 Residential 100
One Island Place, itA R Ef (e
No. 51 Tanner Road, F2E515%
North Point, VBN R
Hong Kong 181EGE
Flat Eon 11/F, aBE Medium 975 Residential 100
Two Island Place, itA HEf F=
No. 55 Tanner Road, F 28555
North Point, FEIB IR 21
Hong Kong 1112EZE
Flat D, 8/F, BB Medium 597 Residential 100
Three Island Place, it A 1 Ef (e
No. 61 Tanner Road, N2E615%
North Point, FEIB R 3R
Hong Kong 8IEDE
Flat No. 702, 7/F, Block B, BE Medium 514 Residential 100
Healthy Gardens, i HEf (e
No. 560 King's Road, HREB5605%
North Point, 2R TEEBRE
Hong Kong 78702%
Portion B on 5/F, BB Medium 4,462 Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, i ki I%
Kwun Tong, Bk
Kowloon BB 8325
Hong Kong 5tEBED
Unit C, 2/F, e Long 4,864 Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building. B R I%
No. 8 On Yip Street, S8
Chai Wan, ABEIBAE
Hong Kong 2ECEN
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Information to Stakeholders F|z5HREE B,

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be sent fo Shareholders together with a
proxy form on or before 30 April 2009.

Date: Wednesday, 10 June 2009

Time: 9.30 a.m.

Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road
North Point, Hong Kong

DIVIDEND

Final dividend: HKDO.01 per ordinary share
Book close period: Thursday, 4 June 2009 to
Friday, 5 June 2009
Payment date for final dividend: on or about Thursday, 2 July 2009

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at the 2éth Floor of Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 3 June 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008 is published on both the websites of the Company (www.
symphonyholdings.com) and the Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Address:  10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
Name: The Bank of Bermuda Limited

Address: 6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address:  26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 29801333

Fascmile: (852) 28108185

STOCK CODE
Exchange: 01223
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